N\

Y&S s, Board Meeting Agenda

RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Location: WSI Board Room, 1600 East Century Avenue, Bismarck ND
By phone: 701.328.0950 Conference ID: 528 414 373#

Date: Tuesday, September 9, 2025

Time: 8:30 A.M. Join the meeting now

I. MINUTES
A. August 19, 2025

Il. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE CONSIDERATION

I1l. PRESENTATIONS
A. Asset Allocation — NEPC (Board Action)

IV. DEFERRED COMPENSATION / DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
A. 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan Self-Certification of Unforeseeable Financial
Hardships — Marcy (Board Action)
B. 457 Companion Plan & 401(a) Plan 2nd Quarter 2025 Report — Derrick (Information)

V. GROUP INSURANCE / FLEXCOMP
A. FlexComp Plan Document — Lindsay (Board Action)
B. Medicare Part D Plan Contract Amendment — Katheryne (Board Action)
C. 2024 Active Health Care Report — Katheryne (Information)

VI. OPERATIONS / ADMINISTRATIVE
A. Audit Committee Report — Shawna (Information)
B. Contracts Under $10,000 — Rebecca (Information)
C. Next Meeting Dates:
1. Special Meeting:  Thursday, September 25™ at 4:00 P.M. (via Teams)
2. Regular Meetings: Tuesday, October 14™" and Wednesday, October 29t

VII.MEMBER *EXECUTIVE SESSION
A. Unforeseeable Financial Hardship Case #943 — Marcy (Board Action)
B. Unforeseeable Financial Hardship Case #953 — Marcy (Board Action)

*Executive Session pursuant to N.D.C.C. §44-04-19.2, §44-04-19.2(1) and/or §54-52-26 to discuss
confidential records or confidential member information.

Any individual requiring an auxiliary aid or service must contact the NDPERS ADA Coordinator
at 328-3900, at least 5 business days before the scheduled meeting.


https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_Y2I1ZGZlNjAtMDNjNi00NDQzLTk1MmItYjY1Y2I2NzVlOWQ1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%222dea0464-da51-4a88-bae2-b3db94bc0c54%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22fbd90691-a0fa-4f31-80c5-9924dc2515f4%22%7d

A North Dakota Rebecca Fricke

000 0 Public Employees Retirement System Executive Director
Y‘ S 1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 e PO Box 1657 (701) 328-3900
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 1-800-803-7377
Fax (701) 328-3920  Email ndpers-info@nd.gov Website www.ndpers.nd.gov
TO: NDPERS Board
FROM: Derrick Hohbein
DATE: September 9, 2025
SUBJECT: Asset Allocation

Representatives from NEPC will be joining the Board meeting to discuss the asset allocation
for the PERS Defined Benefit Retirement Plan.

The investment subcommittee took action to recommend the full Board approve updating
the asset allocation to Mix #1 in the presentation.

Board Action Requested:
Consider the recommendation of the Investment Subcommittee and select a new asset
allocation for the PERS plan.



ASSET-LIABILITY ANALYSIS
AND ASSET ALLOCATION
RECOMMENDATION

NORTH DAKOTA STATE INVESTMENT
BOARD - PERS

SEPTEMBER 2025




PLAN AND ASSET
ALLOCATION
PROFILES




OVERVIEW

Today’s discussion covers the Asset-Liability analysis for PERS.

The plans’ liability structure, funded status and discount rate (i.e., long-
term return assumption) vary and are reviewed later in the deck; these
factors were considered in the final recommendation

Return expectations across the plans range from 6.50% to 7.25%; based
on the NEPC March 31, 2025 capital market assumptions, it seems
reasonable to expect that the long-term (30-year) return expectations
could meet or exceed the current assumptions

In addition to the Current policy, we have presented in this deck two
specific implementable allocations (one lower risk and one similar risk)
as an alternative to the current policy




WORK PLAN / ROADMAP

North Dakota State Investment Board
2025 Pension Asset/Liability Project Plan

Step/Milestone Estimated Timing

Collect all data relative to plan liabilities and structure December 2024

Review of NEPC capital market assumptions, current policy expectations and

plan objectives (with NDRIO Staff) SJEIETR7 AP

Review, discuss, and consider revisions to portfolio/plan objectives

(with NDRIO Staff) February 2025
Discuss and identify potential alternatives to the current policy May 2025
Scenario modeling for Current and Alternative Policies May 2025

Review modeling results (with NDRIO Staff) June 2025
Prepare draft of Board materials July 2025

Board Materials and Recommendations Finalized August 2025

Study Presented to Board and Decision Finalized September Board Meeting

NE




PERS PENSION PLAN: CURRENT STATE
pal s

Plan Year 7/1 - 6/30
Actuary GRS
Participants (Total) 60,098
Actives 25,799
Terminated Vesteds 18,667
Retirees & Beneficiaries 15,632
Payroll 1,544,827,229
Actuarial Accrued Liability 6,218,968,568
Market Value of Assets 4,265,287,349
Actuarial Value of Assets 4,247,191,213
Unfunded Actuarial Liability 1,971,777,355
Funded Status (AVA) 68.3%
Discount Rate 6.50%
Payroll Growth Rate 3.50%
Normal Cost Rate 12.2%
Remaining Amortization
Period 30
Asset Valuation Method 5-Year Smoothing
COLA None
Open/Closed Partially Open
Funding Policy ER: Fixed Rate

EE: Fixed Rate

In 2026, Non-Public
Safety funding policy
changes to dynamic
model of normal cost
plus closed 30-yr
amortization of unfunded
liabilities ending 2056




CORE ASSET CLASS RETURN ASSUMPTIONS

Asset Class 3/31/2025 3/31/2024
10-Year Return 10-Year Return

Cash 3.9% 4.1% -0.2%
U.S. Inflation 2.6% 2.6% -
U.S. Large-Cap Equity 6.4% 4.1% +2.3%
Non-U.S. Developed Equity 5.1% 4.3% +0.8%
Emerging Market Equity 7.7% 8.3% -0.6%
Global Equity* 6.5% 5.1% +1.4%
Private Equity* 8.8% 8.8% -
U.S. Treasury Bond 4.4% 4.4% -
U.S. Municipal Bond 4.0% 3.7% +0.3%

Fixed U.S. Aggregate Bond* 4.8% 4.8% -

Income RENSERRIEES 4.5% 4.7% -0.2%

U.S. High Yield Corporate Bond 6.5% 6.1% +0.4%
Private Debt* 8.3% 8.3% -
Commodity Futures 4.4% 4.3% +0.1%
REIT 5.3% 6.1% -0.8%

Real

A Gold 4.5% 4.8% -0.3%

ssets
Real Estate - Core 5.6% 5.8% -0.2%
Private Real Assets - Infrastructure 5.8% 6.7% -0.9%
60% S&P 500 & 40% U.S. Aggregate 6.1% 4.7% +1.4%
60% MSCI ACWI & 40% U.S. Agg. 6.1% 5.3% +0.8%
Hedge Fund* 6.5% 6.1% +0.4%

*Calculated as a blend of other asset classes. NEPC's capital market assumptions reflect proprietary forecasts for expected returns, volatility, and
correlations. Return expectations may differ from an investor’s realized returns after accounting for fees, taxes, or other aspects that can influence actual
E returns. Return forecasts and methodology are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are subject to change over time.

02



NDRIO ASSET ALLOCATION
LONG-TERM (30-YEAR) RETURN EXPECTATIONS ABOVE 7.25%

‘ Bismarck ‘ Bismarck | Grand Forks | Grand Forks

Police Employees| Employees Parks
Cash 0.0% 1.0% 0.0% 0.0% 1.0% 0.0%
Total Cash 0.0%0 1.0%0 0.0%0 0.0%0 1.0% 0.0%0
Global Equity 51.0% 45.0% 46.0% 42.0% 55.0% 47.0%
Private Equity 7.0% 10.0% 5.0% 4.0% 5.0% 7.5%
Total Equity 58.0%0 55.0% 51.0% 46.0%0 60.0%0 54.5%
US Aggregate Bond 16.0% 18.0% 22.0% 27.0% 17.0% 18.0%
US High Yield Corporate Bond 3.5% 4.0% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.8%
Private Debt - Direct Lending 3.5% 4.0% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.8%
Total Fixed Income 23.0% 26.0%0 29.0% 34.0%0 24.0% 25.5%
Real Estate - Core 8.3% 6.8% 9.0% 8.6% 5.3% 7.5%
Real Estate - Non-Core 2.7% 2.3% 3.0% 3.4% 1.8% 2.5%
Private Real Assets - Natural Resources 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%
Private Real Assets - Infrastructure 7.0% 8.0% 7.0% 7.0% 7.0% 9.0%
Total Real Assets 19.0%0 18.0%0 20.0%0 20.0% 15.0%0 20.0%
Expected Return 10 yrs (Geometric) 6.7% 6.8%0 6.6%0 6.5%0 6.6% 6.7%
Expected Return 30 yrs (Geometric) 7.7% 7.7% 7.5% 7.5% 7.6% 7.7%
Standard Deviation 13.6%0 13.2% 12.4% 11.6% 13.4% 13.1%
Sharpe Ratio (10 years) 0.20 0.22 0.21 0.22 0.20 0.21
Sharpe Ratio (30 years) 0.31 0.32 0.32 0.34 0.31 0.32




ALTERNATIVE ASSET ALLOCATION PROFILES
NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Mix 1 ‘ Mix 2 1&2{?’;‘1" Volatility "\‘(‘;‘glrge ‘ A'I\'pe[fa
Global Equity 40% 40%0 6.5% 18.2% 2.8% 0.5%
Private Equity 15% 10%0 8.8% 25.8% 0.0% 1.0%
Total Equity 55%b 50%
US Aggregate Bond 16% 21% 4.8% 5.8% 4.9% 0.3%
US High Yield Corporate Bond 2.5% 2.5% 6.5% 11.3% 8.1% 0.3%
Private Debt - Direct Lending 7.5% 7.5%0 8.2% 11.0% 9.5% 1.0%
Total Fixed Income 26%b6 31%
Real Estate - Core 8.3% 8.3% 5.6% 14.7% 5.4% 0.0%
Real Estate - Non-Core 2.7% 2.7% 7.2% 25.0% 7.2% 0.5%
Private Real Assets - Natural Resources 1.0% 1.0% 8.1% 32.5% 3.9% 0.5%
Private Real Assets - Infrastructure 7.0% 7.0% 5.8% 10.6% 3.2% 0.5%
Total Real Assets 19% 19%
10-Year Expected Return (Geo) 7.0% 6.8%0
30-Year Expected Return (Geo) 8.0% 7.8%
Asset Volatility 13.8% 12.6%
Sharpe Ratio (10 years) 0.22 0.23
Sharpe Ratio (30 years) 0.33 0.34
Portfolio Income Yield 3.73% 3.98%
Portfolio Alpha (Net) 0.52% 0.49%
Probability of 1-Yr Return Under 026 30.5% 29.4%
Probability of 30-Yr Return Over 6.5%0 58.5% 55.9%
959%b 1-Year Max Drawdown -14.7% -13.0%
Liquidity Profile
Tier 1 (Daily Liquidity) 40%0 40%
Tier 2 (Semi-liquid) 18.5% 23.5%
Tier 3 (Illiquid) 41.5% 36.5%

NE




ASSET-LIABILITY
ANALYSIS




PURPOSE OF ASSET-LIABILITY STUDY

= Review the current/projected financial status of the plan over long-term
horizon

= Determine appropriateness of current asset allocation with
consideration of:

— Expected progress of liabilities and cash flows/liquidity needs
— Path of funded status

= Test sensitivity of plan (Assets and Liabilities) to various range of
outcomes

— Market performance across range of economic environments
— Contribution volatility
— Range of liquidity environments

= Consider appropriate asset mixes and expected return on assets
— Assess return target against tradeoff of volatility/range of outcomes
— Analyze inclusion/exclusion of various asset classes/strategies

10



FIRST PRINCIPLES

All the complexities of pension plans boil down to the classic equation:

B+E=C+1

Benefits (B), Expenses (E), Contributions (C), and Investment Earnings (I)

The funding of pension benefits is made possible through the combination of member and employer
contributions and returns on investment

The long-term expected return on assets drives the selection of an appropriate discount rate for public
pension liabilities

Expected return on assets is based on assumptions - actual experience will likely depart from those
assumptions

Long-term nature of pension obligations positions well-funded pension plans to take advantage of long-
term investment opportunities

It is critical and healthy for pension trustees to regularly review fundamental characteristics of the pension
plan:

— Risk tolerance
— Viability of long-term investment return

Risk is multi-dimensional and should be considered from different perspectives — Risk is not just volatility!
- Volatility, potential for drawdowns, illiquidity, exposure to economic factors, etc.

Return expectations are generally lower than historical returns, forcing many investors to reconsider both
return expectations and appropriate levels of risk

NE

=]

11



EXPECTED RETURN

. EXpECtEd return and Iiability Distribution of Investment Return
discount rate are closely linked ASS“mPI“‘;"_ _
for public pension plans >8.5% | | | I I I 1!
— Corporate DB: stringent regulations 6 5% 0.
— Going-concern of government <7.5%

entities has historically provided
comfort in public plans taking
longer term approach

— Expected returns are forward-
looking
= Historical market environment
has led to downward trend in
EROAs for public pensions >6.5%-
~ Median 2023 EROA = 7.0% <o

* Low expected returns put

7.0%
Median

pressure on assumptions and 7-0%
outcomes but... T <6.5%
— Market re-pricing and higher 8888555585555 555555088
yPp Fiscal Year

expectations higher looking

Source: Public Plans Data, NEPC
forward

NE

=]

12



LIQUIDITY PROFILE
NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Current Policy
mTier 1

Mix 1
Tier 2

Mix 2
mTier 3

Net cash flow is expected to
remain negative over next 10
years, averaging -1.3% outflow

— Public funds average between -2% and -4%
net cash flow

Negative cash flow is typical for a
mature pension plan

Fixed contribution model provides
consistent and predictable cash
inflows

NEPC believes the plan can take on
the recommended increase in
illiquids with no material impact in
the plan’s ability to meet its
obligations

13



ECONOMIC SCENARIO ANALYSIS

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

20%

15%

10%

5%

0%

-5%

-10%

-15%

-20%

-25%

5-yr Change in Funded Status

Millions

m Current Policy

$160

$140

$120

$100

$80

$60

$40

$20

$0

5-yr Change in Employer Contribution

m Mix 2

Notes: Scenarios reflect a 5-year market cycle. Change in funded ratio is relative to 68.3% as of July 1, 2024 and change in contribution is relative to $137.4
million for FY2025

14



STOCHASTIC ANALYSIS
NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Probability of 2034 Funded Status Above 100%

30%

28%

Better

a2

26%

24%

Better < o > Worse

22%

20% Worse

18%
26% 28% 30% 32% 34% 36% 38% 40%

Probability of Employer Contribution Above $250mm Within Next 10 Years
® Current Policy Mix1 @Mix 2

Notes: Reflects 10,000 simulations based on mean expected return equal to each allocation’s 10-year arithmetic return and with each allocation’s annual
volatility

15



STOCHASTIC ANALYSIS
NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

84%
83%

82% Better

a

81% o
Better < o » Worse

80%

A 4

79% Worse

Median Funded Status in 2034

78%
$320 $330 $340 $350 $360 $370 $380
95th Percentile Employer Contribution in 2034 ($ millions)

® Current Policy Mix1 @Mix 2

Notes: Reflects 10,000 simulations based on mean expected return equal to each allocation’s 10-year arithmetic return and with each allocation’s annual

N E volatility

=]

16



CONCLUSION AND
RECOMMENDATION




CONCLUSIONS AND NEXT STEPS

ADOPT MIX 1 FOR PERS

Mix 1 PERS
Cash 0.0% 0.0%
Total Cash 0.0%0 0.0%0
Global Equity 40% 51.0%
Private Equity 15%b 7.0%
Total Equity 55%0 58.0%0
US Aggregate Bond 16.0% 16.0%
US High Yield Corporate Bond 2.5% 3.5%
Private Debt - Direct Lending 7.5% 3.5%
Total Fixed Income 26.0% 23.0%0
Real Estate - Core 8.3% 8.3%
Real Estate - Non-Core 2.7% 2.7%
Private Real Assets - Natural Resources 1.0% 1.0%
Private Real Assets - Infrastructure 7.0% 7.0%
Total Real Assets 19.0% 19.0%
10-Year Expected Return (Geo) 7.0% 6.7%
30-Year Expected Return (Geo) 8.0%0 7.7%
Asset Volatility 13.8% 13.6%0

 Mix 1 offers meaningfully better long-term returns than the current policy

* Volatility for Mix 1 is like the current policy for PERS

 Mix 1 offers improved (combination of lower risk and higher return) plan financials over
the long-term relative to the current policy




RATIONALE FOR

PRIVATE
MARKETS




RELATIVELY ATTRACTIVE MARKET EXPOSURE

= Private market investments offers differentiated market exposure and fundamental
advantages to add value

= 1. Differentiated market exposure with attractive expected returns

»= Private markets combine systematic (beta) and active (alpha) returns

— Private assets offer relatively attractive expected returns vs comparable public
markets (NEPC assumes 300-400bps of annual excess returns vs public equity)

— In contrast to public markets, allocators cannot easily separate the beta and alpha
components of private market returns

» Private markets offer an “illiquidity premium” relative to public market assets
— llliquidity premiums compensate investors for long-term capital commitments

= Smoother private valuations and illiquidity are both an advantage and challenge

— Periodic updates in private asset valuations smooth accounting volatility, which is
sometimes seen as an advantage by plan sponsors

- However, smoother valuations complicate rebalancing of the total portfolio and
evaluating risk and return relative to marked-to-market public market assets

— llliquidity also requires robust management of total fund liquidity

20



ADVANTAGES IN ADDING VALUE

2. Fundamental advantages in adding value (using Private Equity as an
illustration)

Governance benefits
— Closer integration reduces the principal/agent problem

— Board control and more frequent CEO touchpoints lead to quicker
decision-making and improved ability to see through strategies

Financial benefits
— Capital structures with higher debt create discipline and tax benefits
— Incentives are aligned; management has significant equity

= Operational benefits
— Less regulatory burden; focus less on legal compliance
— Ability to command additional resources to improve operations
— “Punch above weight” in ability to attract staff
— Assistance in generating acquisitions, customer introductions, etc.

21



MAJORITY OF U.S. COMPANIES ARE PRIVATE

The universe is sizable as more than 85% of U.S. companies are privately held,
representing a large share of employment and production not captured by
listed stocks.

US Employment Share of US Companies with

140,000,000 Revenues > $100 million

100%

120,000,000 90%

o,
100,000,000 80%
70%

80,000,000 60%
50%
60,000,000
40%
40,000,000 30%
20%
20,000,000
10%

0%

m Private Companies Public Companies W Private Companies Public Companies

N E Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics

=]



REDUCTION IN PUBLIC COMPANIES CONTINUES

In 1996 there were over 8,000 public companies across all US exchanges.
Today it's around 3,700.

N E Source: Center for Research in Security Prices (CRSP)

=]

23



PRIVATE EQUITY HAS GENERATED SIGNIFICANT VALUE

* For the 10 years ending 12/31/24, Private Equity (Hamilton Lane Private Equity Universe) has
generated annualized net-of-fee returns of 5.8% in excess of public equity markets (MSCI
ACWI). Using the Cambridge Buyout Index, the spread is 4.5% annually.

NE

=]

24



PUBLIC PLAN PRIVATE EQUITY ALLOCATIONS HAVE
BEEN STEADILY INCREASING

Public Plan Average
Private Equity Allocation

N E Source: Public Plans Data

=]

25



APPENDIX




ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS
NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

= Deterministic and stochastic return projections are based on NEPC’s 3/31/2025
capital market assumptions

— Reflects estimated return of 3.91% for the period 7/1/2024—12/31/2024 then NEPC's return expectations
thereafter

= Asset-liability projections follow a roll-forward methodology based on the July 1,

2024 Actuarial Valuation Report

Benefit payment projection provided by GRS
— Other than those described herein, all assumptions remain unchanged from the valuation
— No gains or losses are assumed other than those attributed to investment experience
- Asset-liability output reflects the roll-up of each plan within PERS modeled individually then aggregated
= Main System, Judges, Public Safety w/ Prior Service, Public Safety w/o Prior Service
— Main System liability projections reflect closing to new entrants effective 1/1/2025
— Main System asset projections reflect $65 million biennial cash infusion beginning in FY 2025

= Employer contribution based on stated funded policy

— Main System:
=  For FY 2025 static contribution rate

= Beginning FY 2026, employer contribution based on employer normal cost plus 30-year closed level percent of pay
amortization

— Judges and Public Safety plans:

= Static contribution rate

= Employee contribution rates assumed to remain level at current rates

NE

=]

27



INFORMATION DISCLAIMER

Past performance is no guarantee of future results.

NEPC, LLC is an investment consulting firm. We provide asset-liability studies for certain clients but we do not
provide actuarial services. Any projections of funded ratio or contributions contained in this report should not
be used for budgeting purposes. We recommend contacting the plan’s actuary to obtain budgeting estimates.

The goal of this report is to provide a basis for substantiating asset allocation recommendations. The opinions
presented herein represent the good faith views of NEPC as of the date of this report and are subject to change
at any time.

Information on market indices was provided by sources external to NEPC. While NEPC has exercised
reasonable professional care in preparing this report, we cannot guarantee the accuracy of all source
information contained within.

The projection of liabilities in this report uses standard actuarial projection methods and does not rely on actual
participant data. Asset and liability information was received from the plan’s actuary, and other projection
assumptions are stated in the report.

All investments carry some level of risk. Diversification and other asset allocation techniques do not ensure
profit or protect against losses.

This report is provided as a management aid for the client’s internal use only. This report may contain
confidential or proprietary information and may not be copied or redistributed to any party not legally entitled
to receive it.

NE

28



A North Dakota Rebecca Fricke

e 0 0 o Public Employees Retirement System Executive Director
YV S 1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 ® PO Box 1657 (701) 328-3900
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 1-800-803-7377
Fax (701) 328-3920  Email ndpers-info@nd.gov Website www.ndpers.nd.gov
TO: NDPERS Board
FROM: Marcy Aldinger
DATE: September 9, 2025
SUBJECT: 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan Self-Certification of Unforeseeable

Financial Hardship

At the August Board meeting, NDPERS staff were given direction by the Board to propose
guidelines allowing self-certification of unforeseeable financial hardships with a maximum
withdrawal of $10,000 once every three months. The Board requested that staff present
proposed guidelines at the September meeting for the board’s consideration.

According to IRC 457, a financial hardship is defined as an unforeseeable emergency
resulting from a sudden and unexpected illness or accident occurring to the participant or
one of participant’s dependents, loss of participant’s property due to casualty, or other
similar extraordinary and unforeseeable circumstances arising as a result of events beyond
participant’s control.

A participant may apply for an unforeseeable hardship if:
1. The patrticipant is experiencing a qualifying hardship or emergency,

2. The amount requested does not exceed the amount necessary to satisfy the need,
and

3. The participant has no other reasonably available means to meet financial needs.

Below are the proposed guidelines:

Effective January 1, 2026, NDPERS participants may self-certify for an unforeseeable
financial hardship in the NDPERS 457 plan for an amount up to $10,000 once every 90
days. Staff felt that specifying the timeframe in days rather than months allowed for a
clearer designation of frequency given the number of days within a month varies.



If a participant wishes to request more than or more frequent than the established limit
above, the participant can still submit a request through the current process, which would
then result in Board review and approval/denial of the request.

Specifically, the proposed guidelines clarify that:

1. If the participant has more than one NDPERS 457provider, the participant may only
self-certify an unforeseeable financial hardship with one NDPERS 457 provider once
every 90 days.

2. The maximum self-certification amount is net amount, after taxes and provider fees,
of $10,000 every 90 days.

3. The 90 days shall be based upon the date the distribution is processed by NDPERS
as meeting the Board-established criteria.

4. The participant must cease contributing to the NDPERS 457 plan for six months after
each distribution.

5. The participant is responsible for ensuring the request is in compliance with IRC 457
and dependent expenses are eligible as defined in Code section 152(a) without
regard to Code section 152(b)(1), (b)(2) and (d)(1)(B)

6. Any funds that have been rolled/transferred into the NDPERS 457 plan from another
eligible plan may be distributed without a self-certification.

7. The participant must complete the 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan Self-
Certification of Unforeseeable Financial Hardship form, which includes the
participant’s acknowledgment of reviewing the IRC 457.

8. Upon notification from NDPERS staff that they are eligible for the unforeseeable
financial hardship based on Board approved criteria, the participant must apply for
the distribution directly with the NDPERS 457 Provider Company. NDPERS will
notify the provider company of the participant’s eligibility for the distribution by
approving their distribution application.

9. The participant is responsible for retaining documentation for the qualifying hardship
or emergency in the event they are audited or required to provide proof that they met
the requirements.

10. Self-certification that meets Board approved criteria does not need to be brought to
the Board. The Board authorizes staff to process self-certification applications that
meet established criteria.

11. Staff will track self-certified distributions.

Once the Board approves the proposed guidelines for the self-certification process, staff will
prepare updated Plan Documents, prepare the new form for members to use and begin
updating the various communications regarding the process. These items will be brought
before the Board to approve at a future meeting.

BOARD ACTION REQUESTED:

Provide approval or additional direction on the proposed self-certification of unforeseeable
financial hardship guidelines for the 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan to be effective
January 1, 2026.



A North Dakota Rebecca Fricke

00 0 0 Public Employees Retirement System Executive Director
: (701) 328-3900
1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 e PO Box 1657
Y‘ S Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 1-800-803-7377
Fax (701) 328-3920  Email ndpers-info@nd.gov Website www.ndpers.nd.gov
TO: NDPERS Board
FROM: Derrick Hohbein
DATE: September 9, 2025
SUBJECT: 457 Companion Plan & 401(a) Plan 2nd Quarter 2025 Report

Attached is the 2nd Quarter 2025 investment report for the 401(a) & 457 Companion Plans, which
was reviewed by the Investment Subcommittee. The reports are available separately on the
NDPERS website. The two plans have 12,403 (11,604 in Q1) participants with $274.8 million
($250.1 million in Q1) in assets.

Assets in the 401(a) plan increased to $30.8 million ($25.6 million in Q1) as of June 30, 2025. The
number of active participants also increased and is now at 1,587 (811 in Q1). The Target Date
funds have 58.9% of the plan assets.

Assets in the 457 Companion Plan increased to $244.0 million ($224.5 in Q1) as of June 30, 2025.
The number of active participants increased and is now at 10,816 (10,793 in Q4). The Target
Date funds have 66.0% of the plan assets.

Benchmarks:
Fund returns for the quarter were positive for the funds in the core lineup. All 23 core funds had
positive returns for the quarter. Core fund performance was mixed when compared to
benchmarks.

Fund / Investment News:

The Retirement & Investment Office provided an overview of the returns of the Pension Funds.
The NDPERS Investment Subcommittee reviewed the 2nd Quarter 2025 plan review and field
activity report with Empower. Callan gave a market overview and investment performance report.
Empower provided information on participant engagement and educational efforts for the
members in our plans.

NEPC gave their presentation on the asset allocation recommendation, and was the only
actionable item from the subcommittee meeting.



Statistics on enrollments as of June 30, 2025 in the Defined Contribution 2025 plan are as follows:

DC Def Comp| DC 2025 + Def
Election | Election | Comp Election Forfeited % that elected

Date Hires [0% |1%|2%|3% |4%|5%|6%| Total Total Total No election | election |Still eligible match
1/16/2025 159 512|628 41 41 118 25.79%
24712025 352 |33)12)15)115 1 175 5 181 171 51.42%
2/13/2025 401 | 441419138 1 216 9 226 175 56.36%
2/20/2025 477 1491824183 1 274 7 282 195 59.12%
2/28/2025 575 | 602527225 2 337 15 354 221 61.57%
3/6/2025 606 | 66 |27 |30|245 1]2 371 17 385 234 116 118 64.03%
3/13/2025 650 | 72)30|35|276 1]2 416 19 435 234 126 108 66.92%
3/20/2025 738 | 77)3940)330 1]2 489 19 508 249 148 101 68.83%
3/27/2023 772 | 794340356 1]2 521 23 544 251 154 97 70.47%
44312025 828 | 81|43 42384 1]2 553 28 581 275 162 113 70.17%
4/10/2025 865 | 814146406 12 577 31 608 288 176 112 70.29%
5/2/2025 1004 | 88 | 49 |60 |475 1]2 675 44 719 329 218 111 71.61%
5/30/2025 1161 | 99 |48 |67 |571 1]2 788 52 840 373 243 130 72.35%
6/30/2025 1300 |108| 50 |75 697 2|2 934 59 993 366 271 93 76.38%




Attachment #1

NDPERS
Quarterly Investment
Report
2nd Quarter
4/01/2025 — 6/30/2025

BBBBBBB
Bismarck, ND 58502





















A North Dakota Rebecca Fricke
Public Employees Retirement System Executive Director

LI 1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 ¢ PO Box 1657 (701) 328-3900
Y‘ S Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 (800) 803-7377
Fax (701) 328-3920 Email ndpers-info@nd.gov Website www.ndpers.nd.gov
TO: NDPERS Board
FROM: Lindsay Schaf
DATE: September 9, 2025
SUBJECT: FlexComp — Plan Document

NDPERS staff reviewed and made minor edits to the FlexComp Plan Document. The edits
are due to optional changes made within federal law under the One Big Beautiful Bill
(OBBB) that allows for an increase of the maximum pledge amount of dependent care
flexible spending accounts from $5,000 to $7,500 for single or married filing a joint tax
return, effective January 1, 2026. For married filing a separate tax return, the maximum is
half of the aforementioned amount. These updates have been reviewed by ASIFlex and
legal counsel. The attachment has the suggested changes tracked for the Board’s review.
Upon approval, the Table of Contents and/or formatting will be updated as needed.

Staff is requesting approval of the increased dependent care flexible spending account
limit, along with the updates to the Plan Document, effective with the new plan year
effective January 1, 2026. If approved, staff will incorporate this update into the 2026 Plan
Year Annual Enrollment communications for eligible employees.

Board Action Requested

Approve the increased dependent care flexible spending account limit and updates to the
NDPERS FlexComp Plan Document effective January 1, 2026.



Attachment

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
FLEXCOMP PLAN DOCUMENT

Effective January 1, 20265



ADOPTION RESOLUTION

Resolved, that effective January 1, 20265, the State of North Dakota has adopted the
attached amended and restated Section 125 FlexComp Plan. The Plan is intended to
satisfy the requirements of Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and
its associated regulations.

By:

Title:

Dated:




ARTICLE 1.

ARTICLE II.
ARTICLE Il1.
ARTICLE IV.
ARTICLE V.
ARTICLE VI.

ARTICLE VII.

ARTICLE VIII.

ARTICLE IX.

ARTICLE X.

ARTICLE XI.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
PURPOSE OF PLAN ....coovvovvoieeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 4
DEFINITIONS ..o 5
ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION ....cco..vvviveirrnnenne. 10
BENEFITS ..o 22
SALARY REDUCTIONS .....ccoooorveiveieeeseeeseeseeeeesne. 23
SALARY REDUCTION ELECTIONS ........vverveerrennanne. 26
PAYMENT OF CLAIMS ......oovoiviireieeeeeeeeseeeee e, 31
ADMINISTRATION ... 36
APPEALS PROCEDURE .....co..ooovieveieveeeeseeeeeeesveseeon. 39
AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF THE PLAN........ 40
GENERAL PROVISIONS.........ovoiviiveireeereeeseeereene. 41



ARTICLE |. PURPOSE OF PLAN

The purpose of the State of North Dakota FlexComp Plan (“Plan”) is to allow Employees
to pay medical, dental, vision, group term life, and other eligible insurance premiums,
along with other medical and dependent care expenses using pre-tax dollars.

The Board (pursuant to North Dakota Century Code Section 54-52-04) has, therefore,
adopted the Plan as set forth herein and as amended from time to time, effective January
1, 20264 for the exclusive benefit of those Employees.

The Plan is intended to qualify as a cafeteria plan within the meaning of Code section 125
and shall be construed in a manner consistent with that section such that salary reduction
elections will be eligible for exclusion from a Participant’s taxable income. The Dependent
Care FSA Plan is intended to qualify as a dependent care assistance program within the
meaning of Code section 129, and the Health FSA Plan is intended to qualify as a self-
insured medical reimbursement plan under Code section 105. The tax implications of this
Plan, however, are subject to rulings, regulations, and the application of the tax laws of
the state and federal government. Although it may anticipate certain tax consequences
as being likely, neither the Board nor an Employer represents or warrants to any
Participant that any particular tax consequence will result from participation in this Plan.
By participating in the Plan, each Participant understands and agrees that in the event
the Internal Revenue Service or any state or political subdivision thereof should ever
assess or impose any taxes, charges and/or penalties upon any benefits received under
the Plan, the recipient of the benefit will be responsible for those amounts, without
contribution from the Board or an Employer.

This Plan is intended not to discriminate as to eligibility or benefits in favor of the
prohibited group under Code sections 105, 125, and 129. The Plan provisions shall apply
uniformly to all Employees.



ARTICLE Il. DEEINITIONS

The following words and phrases have the following meaning, unless a different meaning
is plainly required by the text:

2.01

2.02

2.03

2.04

2.05

2.06

2.07

Board. “Board” means the North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System
(PERS) board.

Benefit Package Option. “Benefit Package Option” means a qualified benefit
under Code section 125(f) that is offered under a cafeteria plan or an option for
coverage under an underlying accident or health plan

Benefit Plan. “Benefit Plan” means the life insurance, medical, dental, vision,
cancer insurance and in some cases disability plans —and any alternate medical
coverage under a health maintenance organization approved by the Board.

Code. “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Dependent Care Center. “Dependent Care Center” means any facility which:

a. complies with all applicable laws and regulations of the State of North
Dakota and unit of local government in which it is located,;

b. provides care for more than six (6) individuals (other than individuals who
reside at the center); and

C. receives a fee, payment or grant for providing services for any such
individuals (regardless of whether such facility is operated for profit).

Dependent Care FSA Plan. “Dependent Care FSA Plan” means the dependent

care assistance plan under this Plan that permits Employees to receive
reimbursements from Qualified Dependent Care Expense accounts.

Dependent Child. For purposes of payment of the Pre-Tax Premiums to a Benefit
Plan, “Dependent Child” means a child who is the Participant’s “qualifying child” or
“qualifying relative” as those terms are defined in Code section 152 (determined
without regard to subsections (b)(1), (b)(2) and (d)(1)(B) thereof) and subject to
the special rule in Code section 152(e) for divorced or separated parents or a child
(within the meaning of Code section 152(f)(1)) who has not attained age 27 as of
the end of the year. For purposes of the Qualified Health Care Expense accounts,
“Dependent Child” means a child (within the meaning of Code section 152(f)(1))
who is either (1) a “qualifying child” as that term is defined in Code section 152
(determined without regard to subsections (b)(1), (b)(2) and (d)(1)(B) thereof) and
subject to the special rules in Code section 152(e) for divorced or separated
parents or (2) a child (within the meaning of Code section 152(f)(1)) who has not
attained age 27 as of the end of the year.




2.08

2.09

2.10

211

2.12

2.13

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a child named in a qualified medical child support
order (QMCSO) as defined in section 609 of the Employee Retirement Security
Income Act (ERISA) shall be a Dependent Child to the extent specified in the
QMCSO. The preceding sentence applies only to the Pre-Tax Premiums for a
Benefit Plan and the Qualified Health Care Expense accounts under this Plan.

Earned Income. “Earned Income” means earned income as set forth in Code
section 32(c)(2), but excluding such amounts paid or incurred by the Employer for
dependent care assistance to the Participant.

Employee. “Employee” means employees of the State of North Dakota and district
health units that are eligible to participate in the Plan. In addition, members of the
Legislative Assembly are considered employees and eligible to participate in the
Plan. Employees of higher education and political subdivisions are excluded from
participation in the Plan.

Eligible employees who are eighteen (18) years of age, whose services are not
limited in duration, who are filling an approved and regularly funded position, and
who are employed at least seventeen and one-half (17 %2) hours per week and at
least five (5) months each year, or those first employed after August 1, 2003 who
are employed at least twenty (20) hours per week and at least twenty (20) weeks
each year, are eligible to participate in the Plan.

Employer. “Employer” means the State of North Dakota, excluding higher
education, and any participating district health units as defined in Section 54-52.3-
01 of the North Dakota Century Code.

Grace Period. “Grace Period” shall mean the period that begins immediately
following the close of a Plan Year and ends on the day that is two (2) months
plus fifteen (15) days following the close of that Plan Year.

Health Care Expense. “Health Care Expense” means expenses incurred by a
Participant for “medical care” within the meaning of Code section 213(d), incurred
by a Participant, Spouse, or Dependent Child, but do not include premium
payments for other medical plan coverage, including premiums paid for
medical coverage under a plan maintained by the employer of a Spouse or
Dependent Child or “qualified long-term care services,” as described in Code
section 213(d)(1)(C). For over-the-counter (OTC) drugs and medicines (other
than insulin) which are for medical care as defined in Code section 213(d) will not
be reimbursable as a Health Care Expense unless the Participant, Spouse or
Dependent Child has a prescription for such drug or medicine. However, OTC
products that are not considered drugs or medicines continue to be reimbursable
if the product is for medical care as defined in Code section 213(d) and is not
merely for good health or for cosmetic purposes.

Health FSA Plan. “Health FSA Plan” means the health flexible spending
arrangement plan under this Plan that permits Employees to receive
reimbursements from Qualified Health Care Expense accounts.




2.14

2.15
2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

Health Savings Account (HSA). “Health Savings Account” or “HSA” means a
health savings account established under Code section 223 as an individual trust
or custodial account, each separately established and maintained by an Employee
with a qualified trustee or custodian.

Participant. “Participant” means an Employee who is participating in the Plan.
Plan. “Plan” means the State of North Dakota FlexComp Plan, as set forth herein.

Plan Administrator. “Plan Administrator” means the North Dakota Public
Employees Retirement System (PERS) with the authority and responsibility to
manage and direct the operation and administration of the Plan. Plan Administrator
includes any designated agent to which specified administrative functions under
the Plan have been delegated, to the extent of such delegation.

Plan Year. “Plan Year” means a twelve (12) consecutive month period beginning
January 1 and ending December 31.

Pre-Tax Premium(s). “Pre-Tax Premium(s)” means the cost of life, disability,
medical, dental, vision and cancer insurance under the Benefit Plan which a
Participant is required, as a condition for coverage, to defray. The amount of the
Pre-Tax Premium(s) under the Benefit Plan shall be approved by the Board in
accordance with the Board’s policies that are applied to all Employees in a
consistent manner.

Qualified Beneficiary. “Qualified Beneficiary” means an individual who, on the
day before a Qualifying Event, is a Spouse or Dependent Child of a Participant in
the Health FSA Plan. A person who becomes a new Spouse of an existing
Qualified Beneficiary during a period of continuation coverage is not a Qualified
Beneficiary.

In the case of a Qualifying Event that is termination of employment or reduction in
hours, Qualified Beneficiary also includes an individual, who on the day before
such Qualifying Event, is a Participant in the Health FSA Plan.

A newborn child or adopted child of a Qualified Beneficiary or a child placed for
adoption with a Qualified Beneficiary who was not a covered Employee will be
entitled to the same continuation coverage period available to the Qualified
Beneficiary, however, such child shall not become a Qualified Beneficiary. A
newborn child or adopted child of a Qualified Beneficiary or child placed for
adoption with a Qualified Beneficiary who was a covered Employee shall
become a Qualified Beneficiary in his/her own right and shall be entitled to benefits
as a Qualified Beneficiary.

A Qualified Beneficiary must notify the Board within thirty (30) days of the child’s
birth, adoption or placement for adoption in order to add the child to the
continuation coverage.

Qualified Dependent Care Expense. “Qualified Dependent Care Expense”
means any employment-related dependent care expense eligible for
7




2.22

2.23

2.24

reimbursement under the Plan as determined under Code sections 129(e)(1) and
21(b)(2). Such expense includes amounts paid for household services and for the
care of Qualifying Individuals enabling the Employee and his/her Spouse to be
gainfully employed or if the Spouse is physically or mentally unable to care for self,
or if the Spouse is a Student.

Qualified Health Care Expense. “Qualified Health Care Expense” means any
Health Care Expense which is not otherwise reimbursable under a Benefit Plan or
other plan or entity.

Qualifying Event. “Qualifying Event” means any of the following with respect to
continued participation in the Health FSA Plan under Section 3.07, if it results in
termination of coverage:

a. The death of a Participant.

b. The voluntary or involuntary termination of employment (other than by
reason of gross misconduct) or reduction in hours of a Participant.

C. The divorce or legal separation of a Participant from his/her Spouse.
d. A Dependent Child ceasing to be a Dependent Child.

Qualifying Individual. “Qualifying Individual” means, for purposes of a Qualified
Dependent Care Expense account, any individual who is:

a. The Participant’s dependent child (as defined in Code section 152(a)(1) and
who has not attained age thirteen (13); or

b. The Participant’'s dependent (as defined in Code section 152 (determined
without regard to subsections (b)(1), (b)(2) and (d)(1)(B) thereof)), who (i) is
physically or mentally incapable of caring for himself or herself; and (ii) has
the same principal place of abode as the Participant for more than one-half
of the Plan Year; or

C. The Participant’s Spouse if the Spouse is physically or mentally incapable
of caring for himself or herself and has the same principal place of abode
as the Participant for more than one-half of the Plan Year.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of divorced or separated parents (within
the meaning of Code section 152(e) or parents that were never married, a
Qualifying Individual who is a child shall, as provided in Code section 21(e)(5), be
treated as a Qualifying Individual of the custodial parent (within the meaning of
Code section 152(e)) and shall not be treated as a Qualifying Individual with
respect to the non-custodial parent.

Expenses incurred outside the Participant’s household for a Qualifying Individual
under (b) or (c) above shall constitute Qualified Dependent Care Expenses only if
the Qualifying Individual regularly spends at least eight (8) hours each day in the
Participant's household.



2.25

2.26

2.27

Salary Reduction Agreement. “Salary Reduction Agreement” means an
agreement by a Participant to reduce his/her salary or wage to pay for applicable
Pre-Tax Premiums, to allocate to a Qualified Health Care Expense account or
Qualified Dependent Care Expense account, or to contribute to an HSA.

Spouse. “Spouse” means the spouse of a Participant but shall not include an
individual legally separated from a Participant under a decree of divorce or of
separate maintenance. An individual shall be considered lawfully married
regardless of where the individual is domiciled if either of the following are true: (1)
the individual was married in a state, possession, or territory of the U.S. and the
individual is recognized as lawfully married by that state, possession, or territory
of the U.S.; or (2) the individual was married in a foreign jurisdiction and the laws
of at least one state, possession, or territory of the U.S. would recognize the
individual as lawfully married.

Student. “Student” means an individual who, during each of five (5) calendar
months during a taxable year is a full-time student at an educational institution
which normally maintains a regular faculty and curriculum and normally has a
regularly enrolled body of students in attendance at the place where its educational
activities are regularly carried on.



3.01

3.02

3.038

ARTICLE Illl. ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION

Eligibility. All Employees eligible to participate in a Benefit Plan are eligible to
participate in the Plan for purposes of payment of Pre-Tax Premiums under section
4.01. All Employees are eligible to participate in the Plan for purposes of payment
of eligible —Qualified Health Care Expenses under Section 4.02, except that an
Employee with any contributions to a Health Savings Account in a Plan Year
cannot participate in the Qualified Health Care Expense Account portion of the
Plan for such Plan Year. All Employees are eligible to participate in the Plan for
purposes of payment of —Qualified Dependent Care Expenses under Section
4.03.

An employee who becomes an eligible Employee during the Plan Year is eligible
to participate the first day of the month following the date he or she becomes an
Employee, contingent upon the month in which the first payroll deduction
will occur. An Employee shall also be allowed to participate if he or she
experiences a change in participation status, as described in sSection 3.03.

Participation. Participation is established on a Plan Year to Plan Year basis. Each
Employee shall be a Participant in the Plan for a Plan Year as follows:

a. For purposes of receiving Pre-Tax Premium benefits under Section 4.01
and HSA benefits under Section 4.04, participation will become effective
when the appropriate Salary Reduction Agreement has been submitted as
outlined in Article VI.

For the purpose of receiving employee supplemental life insurance Pre-Tax
Premium benefits for the first $50,000 in coverage, participation will be
automatic unless an employee elects not to participate under this Plan for
the Plan Year for the purpose of Pre-Tax Premium. An Employee who is
eligible to —participate may elect not to participate by completing and
submitting an appropriate declination form with the Employer within the
election period established by the Board. An Employee who elects not to
participate with regard to payment of Pre-tax Premiums for life insurance
shall pay for such Pre-tax Premiums for life insurance under the Benefit
Plan on an after—tax basis.

b. For purposes of receiving reimbursement for Qualified Health Care
Expenses and/or Qualified Dependent Care Expenses, participation will
begin when the appropriate Salary Reduction Agreement(s)_have been
submitted and become effective under Article VI.

A Participant’s Salary Reduction Agreement shall terminate at the end of the Plan
Year. A Participant must make an affirmative election for salary reduction for each
Plan Year.

Changes in_Participation _Status. With respect to the Pre-Tax Premiums,
Qualified Health Care Expense accounts, and Qualified Dependent Care Expense

10




accounts, a Participant may revoke or amend participation in the Plan during a
Plan Year only on account of and consistent with a change in status or other
circumstances allowed under applicable law or regulation. Unless otherwise
specified, a revocation or amendment of participation must be made within thirty-
one (31) days after the change in status occurs and will be effective for the balance
of the Plan Year in which the election is made, beginning with the first appropriate
pay period after the election is received.

A Participant reducing his/her election, based on a change in status, cannot
reduce his/her Salary Reduction Agreement election to the point where his/her
contributions to a Qualified Health Care Expense account or a Qualified
Dependent Care Expense account for the Plan Year are less than the amount
already reimbursed for that Plan Year.

With respect to the HSA, a Participant who makes an election to contribute an
amount on a pre-tax salary reduction basis to his or her HSA may change such
election on a prospective basis at any time during the Plan Year.

a. Change in Status Events. (Applies to Pre-Tax Premiums, Qualified Health
Care Expense accounts and Qualified Dependent Care Expense
accounts.)

1. Change in the Participant’s legal marital status, including marriage,
divorce, death of Spouse, legal separation, or annulment.

2. Change in number of the Participant’'s Dependent Children, including
birth, adoption, placement for adoption, or death.

3. Change in the employment status of the Participant, Spouse, or
Dependent Child, including the following:

(& Termination or commencement of employment.

(b) A reduction or increase in hours of employment by the
Employee, the Employee’'s Spouse or the Employee’s
Dependent Child, including a switch between part-time and full-
time status or commencement of or return from an unpaid leave
of absence.

(c) A change in employment status that results in the Participant,
Spouse, or Dependent Child becoming or ceasing to be eligible
for benefits under the individual’s plan (such as switching from
part-time to full-time or from full-time to part-time employment
status).

(d) Any situation where the Employee, the Employee’s Spouse or
the Employee’s Dependent Child has special enroliment rights
under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of
1996 (HIPAA) as described in Section 3.04.

11



Dependent Child satisfies (or ceases to satisfy) dependent eligibility
requirements, such as attainment of age, Student status or any similar
circumstances.

Change in Residence. (Applies to Pre-Tax Premiums only.) A change in
residence of the Employee, Spouse, or Dependent Child is considered a
status change event. An election change is permissible if the change in
residence affects the Participant’s eligibility for coverage.

Change in Cost. (Applies to Pre-Tax Premiums and the Dependent Care
Expense accounts.) A Participant may make election changes as a result
of changes in cost under the following circumstances:

1. If the cost of a qualified benefits plan increases (or decreases), the
Plan may automatically make a prospective increase (or decrease) in
Employee contributions for the Plan.

2. If the cost of a Benefit Package Option significantly increases or
significantly decreases, a Participant may make a prospective
increase or decrease in payments or revoke his/her election and, in
lieu thereof, choose another Benefit Package Option providing similar
coverage, prospectively. This paragraph only applies in the case of
the dependent care expense accounts if the cost change is imposed
by a dependent care provider who is not a relative of the Employee.

For purposes of the dependent care expense accounts, a change in
provider is a significant change in coverage similar to a Benefit
Package Option becoming available, and may permit an election
change under this Section 3.03.

Change in Coverage. (Applies to Pre-Tax Premiums) A Participant may
make election changes as a result of changes in coverage under the
following circumstances:

1. If the coverage under the Benefit Plan is significantly curtailed without
a loss of coverage, a Participant may revoke his/her election for that
coverage. The Participant may make a new prospective election of
coverage under another Benefit Package Option providing similar
coverage. Coverage is significantly curtailed only if there is an overall
reduction in coverage provided to Participants under the Benefit Plan
S0 as to constitute reduced coverage to Participants generally.

If the coverage under the Benefit Plan is significantly curtailed and a
loss of coverage occurs, a Participant may revoke his/her election. The
Participant may make a new prospective election of coverage under
another Benefit Package Option providing similar coverage or to drop
coverage if no similar Benefit Package Option is available. A loss of
coverage means a complete loss of coverage under the Benefit
Package Option, or other coverage option, or the individual losing all

12



coverage under the option by reason of an overall lifetime or annual
limitation.

2. If the Benefit Plan adds a new Benefit Package Option or improves a
Benefit Package Option, or other coverage option (or eliminates an
existing option) a Participant may elect the newly added option (or
elect another option if an option has been eliminated) prospectively
and may make corresponding election changes with respect to other
Benefit Package Options providing similar coverage. The Plan may
permit eligible Employees who have not previously made an election
to make an election on a prospective basis for coverage under a hew
or improved Benefit Package Option.

With the exception of Qualified Health Care Expense accounts, a
Participant may make a prospective election change that is on account of
and corresponds with a change made under another employer plan,
including a plan of the same employer or of another employer, if:

1. The other plan permits the Participant to make an election change that
would be permitted under federal regulations; or

2. The plan permits Participants to make an election for a period of
coverage that is different from the period of coverage under this Plan.

A Participant may make an election change on a prospective basis to add
coverage under a Benefit Plan for the Employee, Spouse or Dependent
Child if the Employee, Spouse or Dependent Child loses coverage under
any group health coverage sponsored by a governmental or educational
institution, including the following:

1. A state’s children’s health insurance program (SCHIP) under Title XXI
of ——the Social Security Act;

2. A medical care program of an Indian Tribal government (as defined in
Code section 7701(a)(40)), the Indian Health Service, or a tribal
organization;

3. A state health benefits risk pool; or
4. A foreign government group health plan.

When a Participant, Participant’s Spouse, or Participant’'s Dependent(s)
gains eligibility for coverage under a cafeteria plan or qualified benefit plan
of the employer of that Participant’s Spouse or Participant’'s Dependent(s),
a Participant may elect to terminate or decrease coverage for that individual
only if coverage for that individual becomes effective or is increased under
the Participant’'s Spouse’s or Dependent’s employer's plan. —The Plan
Administrator may rely on a Participant’s certification that the Participant
has obtained or will obtain coverage under the Participant’'s Spouse’s or
Dependent’'s employer’s plan unless the Plan Administrator has reason to
believe that the Participant’s certification is incorrect.

13



Judgement, Decrees and Orders. (Applies to Pre-Tax Premiums and
Qualified Health Care Expense accounts.) In the case of a Benefit Plan that
provides health or accident coverage, and for Qualified Health Care
Expense accounts, a Participant’s revocation or amendment of participation
during the Plan Year, and new election for the remainder of the Plan Year,
is allowable:

1. If a judgment, decree, or order (collectively, “Order”) results from a
divorce, legal separation, annulment, or change in legal custody
(including a Qualified Medical Child Support Order (QMCSO)
defined in ERISA section 609) that requires accident or health
coverage for an Employee’s Dependent Child or for a foster child who
is a dependent of the Employee; and

2. The Employee changes his/her election to provide coverage for the
Dependent Child or foster child if the Order requires coverage under
the Employee’s plan; or

3. The Employee changes his/her election to revoke coverage for the
Dependent Child or foster child if the Order requires the former spouse
to provide coverage.

Entitlement to Medicare and Medicaid. (Applies to Pre-Tax Premiums and
Qualified Health Care Expense accounts.) In the case of a Benefit Plan that
provides health or accident coverage, a Participant’s revocation or
amendment of participation during the Plan Year, and new election for the
remainder of the Plan Year, is allowable:

1. If the Employee, Spouse, or Dependent Child becomes entitled to
coverage under Part A or Part B of Title XVIIl of the Social Security
Act (Medicare) or Title XIX of the Social Security Act (Medicaid), other
than coverage consisting solely of benefits under Section 1928 of the
Social Security Act (the program for distribution of pediatric vaccines);
and

2. If the Employee changes his/her election to revoke coverage for that
Employee, Spouse or Dependent Child under the Benefit Plan or
Qualified Health Care Expense account.

Consistency Rules Applicable to Change in Status Events. A Participant’s
mid-year election change under this Section 3.03 satisfies the requirements
of the consistency rule if the election change is on account of and
corresponds with a change in status event that affects the Participant’s,
Spouse’s or Dependent Child’s eligibility or loss of eligibility for coverage
under an employer’s plan.

If the change in status event is the Participant’s divorce, annulment or legal

separation from a Spouse, the death of a Spouse or Dependent Child, or a

Dependent Child ceasing to satisfy the eligibility requirements for coverage,

a Participant may only elect to cancel coverage for the Spouse involved in

the divorce, annulment, or legal separation, the deceased Spouse or

Dependent Child, or the Dependent Child that ceased to satisfy the eligibility
14



requirements. Canceling coverage for any other individual under these
circumstances fails to correspond with the change in status event.

If a Participant, Spouse or Dependent Child gains eligibility for coverage
under a cafeteria plan or qualified benefits plan of the employer of the
Spouse or Dependent Child as a result of a change in marital status or a
change in employment status, a Participant may elect to cease or decrease
coverage for that individual only if coverage for that individual becomes
effective or is increased under the other plan. The Plan may rely on the
Participant’s certification that such individual has obtained or will obtain
coverage under the other plan unless the Plan has reason to believe that
the Participant’s certification is incorrect.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, for purposes of the Qualified Dependent
Care Expense account, a Participant’'s mid-year election change under
Section 3.03 satisfies the requirements of the consistency rule if the election
change is on account of and corresponds with a change in status event that
affects expenses described in Code section 129 (including employment-
related expenses as defined in Code section 21(b)(1) with respect to
dependent care assistance.

The Plan Administrator, in its sole discretion, shall determine, based on the
surrounding facts and circumstances and prevailing Internal Revenue
Service guidance, whether a requested change is on account of and
corresponds with a change in status event.

3.04 HIPAA Special Enroliment Rights. (Applies to Pre-Tax Premiums only.) A

Participant may make a change to an annual election during the Plan Year if the
change corresponds to a special enrollment event under the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and Code section 9801(f),
whether or not the change is permitted under any other section of this Plan, as
follows:

a.

Acquisition of a new Spouse or Dependent Child as a result of marriage,
birth, adoption or placement for adoption.

Loss of eligibility under another group health plan or other health insurance

by anyone who would otherwise be eligible under this Plan, including for

(but not limited to) the following reasons:

1. Voluntary or involuntary termination of employment or reduction in
hours of employment, or death, divorce or legal separation,
cessation of dependent status, or

2. Loss of coverage through an HMO that does not provide benefits to
individuals who do not reside, live or work in the service area, or

3. Termination of employer contributions toward that other coverage, or

15



4. If the other coverage was COBRA continuation coverage and the
coverage was exhausted.

Loss of eligibility for coverage under Title XIX of the Social Security Act
(Medicaid) or under Title XXI of the Social Security Act that is coverage
under a state children’s health insurance program (SCHIP) or becoming
eligible for a premium assistance subsidy from Medicaid or SCHIP. A
Participant has sixty (60) days after the date of the event to change his or
her election.

For individuals losing other coverage, an Employee may revoke
participation in a Benefit Plan and make a new election if the Employee is
eligible, but not enrolled, for coverage under the terms of the Benefit Plan
(or a Spouse or Dependent Child of such an Employee if the Spouse or
Dependent Child is eligible, but not enrolled, for coverage); and

1. The Employee, Spouse or Dependent Child was covered under a
group health plan or had health insurance coverage at the time
coverage was previously offered to the Employee.

2. The Employee stated in writing at such time that coverage under a
group health plan or health insurance coverage was the reason for
declining enrollment.

3. The Employee’s, Spouse’s or Dependent Child’s coverage under a
group health plan or health insurance was under a COBRA
continuation provision and the coverage under such provision was
exhausted, or not under a COBRA continuation provision and either
the coverage was terminated as a result of loss of eligibility for the
coverage (including as a result of legal separation, divorce, death,
termination of employment, or reduction in the number of hours of
employment) or the Employer contributions towards such coverage
were terminated.

Under this subsection d., a revocation or amendment of participation must
be made within thirty-one (31) days after the date of exhaustion of coverage
described in paragraph 1. or the termination of coverage or Employer
contribution described in paragraph 3. and will be effective for the balance
of the Plan Year in which the election is made, beginning on the first day of
the month following the month in which the election is made.

For acquisition of a Spouse or Dependent Child, an Employee may revoke
participation in a Benefit Plan and make a new election if:

1. A person becomes a Spouse or a Dependent Child of the Participant
through marriage, birth, or adoption or placement for adoption, and

16



2. The Participant elects to enroll himself/herself, the Spouse, and/or
the Participant’'s Dependent Child or Children in the Plan, to the
extent that the Spouse or Dependent Children are otherwise eligible
for coverage.

Under this subsection e., a revocation or amendment of participation must
be made within thirty-one (31) days after the date dependent coverage is
made available or the date of the marriage, birth, or adoption or placement
for adoption and will be effective for the balance of the Plan Year in which
the election is made, and in the case of marriage, beginning with the first
appropriate pay period after the election is received; or in the case of a
Dependent Child’s birth, as of the date of such birth; or in the case of a
Dependent Child’s adoption or placement for adoption, the date of such
adoption or placement for adoption.

f. An election change on account of birth, adoption or placement for adoption
will be effective retroactive to the date of birth, adoption or placement for
adoption, provided the request to change the annual election is made within
thirty-one (31) days of the birth, adoption or placement for adoption. Except
as otherwise provided for herein, election changes for other special
enrolliment events (e.g., marriage or loss of other health coverage) will be
effective as soon as practicable once a request for such election changes
has been received, provided the request to change the annual election is
made within thirty-one (31) (or sixty (60) days, as applicable) of the event.

g. Retroactive coverage of a newly acquired Dependent Child on account of
birth, adoption or placement for adoption applies to the Pre-Tax Premiums
under sSection 4.01, but not to the Qualified Dependent Care Expense
accounts. The effective date of coverage of a new Spouse or Dependent
Child under the Qualified Dependent Care Expense account in accordance
with Section 3.03 will be prospective for the balance of the Plan Year
beginning as soon as practicable after the date the new Salary Reduction
Agreement is received by the Plan Administrator.

h. Payroll changes made in accordance with special enrollment under this
Section 3.04 will be effective with the first pay period following approval of
a request to change a salary reduction election amount even if the effective
date of a Dependent Child’s coverage is retroactive.

3.05 Additional Election Change Pursuant to IRS Notice 2014-55. (Applies to Pre-
Tax Premiums for accident and health coverage only.) An Employee who is eligible
to enroll in a government sponsored exchange (marketplace coverage) during a
marketplace special enrollment or open enrollment period may drop Benefit Plan
accident and health coverage midyear, but only if the change corresponds to the
Employee’s intended enrollment (and the intended enroliment of any related
individuals whose coverage is being dropped) in marketplace coverage that is
effective no later than the day after the last day of the original coverage.

17



3.06 Termination of Participation.

a. Pre-Tax Premium(s). Participation with regard to Pre-Tax Premium(s)
provided under this Plan during a Plan Year terminates on the first to occur
of the following:

1. The end of the month following the month of termination of
employment;

2. The date the applicable Salary Reduction Agreement is revoked;

3. The date the Plan or applicable Benefit Plan is terminated; or

4. The date of a change in employment status from permanent to
temporary or reduction in hours to less than twenty (20) hours per
week.

b. Qualified Health Care Expenses. Participation with regard to Qualified

Health Care Expenses provided under this Plan during a Plan Year
terminates on the first to occur of the following:

1. The last day of month in which a Participant ceases to be an
Employee;
2. The date the applicable Salary Reduction Agreement is revoked;

3. The date the Plan or the Health FSA Plan is terminated;

4. The date of a change in employment status from permanent to
temporary or reduction in hours to less than twenty (20) hours per
week; or

4. 5. Upon exhaustion of the annual election once during the Plan Yearf\,,(—r[ Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

in which the Employee ceases employment. \\[ Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 1", No bullets or
numbering

C. Qualified Dependent Care Expenses. Participation with regard to Qualified
Dependent Care Expenses provided under this Plan during a Plan Year
terminates on the first to occur of the following:

1. The last day of month in which a Participant ceases to be an
Employee;

23.  The date the applicable Salary Reduction Agreement is revoked,;

43.  The date the Plan or the Dependent Care FSA Plan is terminated; or

18



3.07

54. The date of a change in employment status from permanent to
temporary or reduction in hours to less thant twenty (20) hours per
week.

Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan to the contrary, a former Participant
shall be entitled to submit a request for reimbursement of Qualified Health Care
Expenses, in accordance with Article VII, as if he/she were a Participant,
provided such Qualified Health Care Expenses were incurred while the former
Participant participated in the Plan.

If participation terminates because the Participant ceases to be an Employee and

the individual returns to eligible employment with the Employer in the same
Plan Year within thirty (30) days, and without any other intervening event that

would permit a Participant to revoke or amend participation, then the
Employee will be required to take the same benefit election for the remaining
portion of the Plan Year as he/she had before he/she terminated. Participation
shall be effective the first of the month following termination date with prior
employer.

If the individual returns to employment, with the Employer, after more than thirty
(30) days he/she will not be eligible to participate in the Pre-tax Premium benefit,
the Qualified Health Care Expense account or the Qualified Dependent Care
Expense account for the remainder of the Plan Year. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, an individual who returns to employment with the Employer after more
than thirty (30) days and within thirteen (13) weeks is eligible to participate in the

Pre-tax Premium benefit with respect to group health plan and life insurance
coverage only.

Notwithstanding any provisions of the Plan to the contrary, a Qualified
Beneficiary may elect to continue coverage for Qualified Health Care Expenses
by electing continuation coverage as set forth in Section 3.07.

Continuation Coverage.

a. Eligibility. A Qualified Beneficiary may continue coverage under the Health
FSA Plan under this Section 3.07 by making election to do so with the
Employer and submitting the applicable continuation coverage contribution,
subject to all conditions and limitations under the Consolidated Omnibus
Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA). The amount of the monthly
contribution will be established by the Plan Administrator and will be paid
on an after-tax basis on a uniform and consistent basis. However, Qualified
Beneficiaries who elect COBRA are permitted to pay the COBRA premiums
on a pre-tax basis through the end of the current Plan Year from their final
paychecks.

b. Maximum Self-Payment Period. A Qualified Beneficiary may elect
continuation coverage because of a Qualifying Event described in Section
2.23 only for the remainder of the Plan Year in which the Qualifying Event
occurs (plus the Grace Period).

19



C.

Procedures to Elect Continuation Coverage.

1.

In the case of a Qualifying Event described in Section 2.23, a. or b
(death, termination of employment or reduction in hours) a Qualified
Beneficiary will receive information concerning continuation coverage,
including the rates, within sixty (60) days of loss of coverage.

In the case of a Qualifying Event as described in Section 2.23, c. or d,
(legal separation or divorce, or a child no longer qualifies as a
Dependent Child) a Qualified Beneficiary must notify the Plan
Administrator within sixty (60) days of the Qualifying Event. If notice is
not received within sixty (60) days of the Qualifying Event, the
Qualified Beneficiary will not be eligible for continuation coverage.

Following receipt of timely notice of a Qualifying Event and within
fourteen (14) days of receipt of such notice, the Plan Administrator will
provide the Qualified Beneficiary with information concerning
continuation coverage and rates.

After notification of continuation coverage, the Qualified Beneficiary
will have sixty (60) days to elect continuation coverage, after the later
of:

(@) the date that the Qualified Beneficiary would lose coverage on
account of the Qualifying Event; or

(b)  the date that the Qualified Beneficiary is sent-sueh the COBRA
election notice.

If a Qualified Beneficiary chooses to waive coverage, a waiver of
continuation coverage will be effective on the date that the waiver is
received by the Plan Administrator.

A Qualified Beneficiary who, during the election period, waives
continuation coverage can revoke the waiver at any time before the
end of the election period. However, if a Qualified Beneficiary who
waives continuation coverage later revokes the waiver within the sixty
(60) day eligibility period, coverage will be reinstated retroactive to the
loss of coverage occurred.

The first monthly payment (which will include premiums for all months
since coverage terminated) must be received by the Plan
Administrator within forty-five (45) days of the date the Qualified
Beneficiary elects to continue coverage. Each subsequent payment is
due by the first day of the month for which coverage is elected, and
shall be considered timely if received within thirty (30) days of the date
due.

If premiums are not received in a timely manner, coverage will
terminate. No claims will be paid until premium payment is received
by the Plan Administrator in accordance with paragraph 4. above.

The election must specify which Qualified Beneficiaries are electing
COBRA continuation coverage. If it does not specify the Qualified

20



Beneficiaries, the election shall be deemed to be an election on behalf
of all Qualified Beneficiaries.

d. Termination of Continuation Coverage. Continuation coverage as provided
under this section will terminate on the earliest of the following dates, as
applicable:

1. The date after election of continuation coverage that the Qualified
Beneficiary first becomes covered under any other group medical
coverage as an employee or dependent.

2. The end of the period for which the last payment was made for
coverage in a timely manner.

3. The end of the Plan Year in which the Qualifying Event occurs (plus
the Grace Period).

4. The date the Qualified Beneficiary becomes entitled to Medicare.

5. Under any circumstance where a non-COBRA beneficiary would have
benefits terminated for cause (e.g., fraud).

6. The date the Board or the applicable Employer ceases to provide any
group health plan.

3.08 Death of a Participant. With respect to Qualified Dependent Care Expenses, if a
Participant dies, his/her participation in the Plan shall cease. However, such
Participant’s estate (or the Participant’s heirs, if there is no estate) may submit
claims for expenses incurred prior to the Participant’s death for the remainder of
the Plan Year or, if earlier, until the account balance is exhausted.

With respect to Qualified Health Care Expenses, if a Participant dies, his/her
participation in the Plan shall cease on the last day of such month. However, there
are two ways for a deceased Participant’s family members to access the money in
the Participant’s Qualified Health Care Expense account. Such Participant’s estate
(or the Participant’s heirs, if there is no estate) may submit claims for expenses
incurred prior to the Participant’s death for the remainder of the Plan Year. In
addition, a Qualified Beneficiary may be eligible to elect COBRA continuation
coverage in accordance with Section 3.07 and obtain reimbursement for their own
health care expenses incurred after the Participant’s death through the end of the
Plan Year and Grace Period. A copy of the death certificate may need to be
provided to the Plan Administrator or designated agent.

21



4.01

4.02

4.03

4.04

4.05

ARTICLE IV. BENEFITS

Pre-Tax Premium(s). An Employee may elect to pay Pre-Tax Premium(s) for a
Benefit Plan subject to the provisions of Section 5.01.

Qualified Health Care Expenses. The Plan Administrator or designated agent
shall reimburse a Participant for Qualified Health Care Expenses incurred by the
Participant or the Participant’s Spouse or Dependent Child in accordance with
the provisions of Section 5.02. Reimbursement for Qualified Health Care
Expenses during a Plan Year is limited to the annualized amount elected by the
Participant to the Qualified Health Care Expense account under a valid Salary
Reduction Agreement. The annual amount elected by the Participant for a
Qualified Health Care Expense account under a valid Salary Reduction
Agreement (minus any reimbursed expenses for the Plan Year) shall be available
at all times during the applicable period of coverage regardless of the actual
amount deducted from the Participant’s salary for the Plan Year. An Employee
who is enrolled in a High Deductible Health Plan with contributions to a Health
Savings Account cannot participate in the Qualified Health Care Expense
account portion of this Plan.

Qualified Dependent Care Expenses. The Plan Administrator or designated
agent shall reimburse a Participant for Qualified Dependent Care Expenses in
accordance with the provisions of Section 5.03. Reimbursement for Qualified
Dependent Care Expenses during a Plan Year is limited to the amount of
expenses incurred, not to exceed the amount in the Participant’s account at the
time a claim is made.

HSA. An Employee may elect to contribute on a pre-tax basis to a HSA.

Determination_of Noncompliance. It is the intent of this Plan to provide a
benefits plan that is nondiscriminatory and provide benefits to a classification of
Employees while not discriminating in favor of any group, as set forth in Code
sections 125, 105, and 129. In the event that a determination is made that all or
any part of the contributions to the Plan do not qualify as non-taxable
contributions under Code sections 125, 105, and/or 129, the affected
contributions made by any Participant shall be treated as taxable salary and, to
the extent not yet expended, returned to such Participant. The Participant shall

pay:

a. Any state or federal income taxes due with respect to such amount, together
with any interest or penalties imposed thereon;

b. The Participant’s share (as determined in good faith) of any applicable FICA
contributions which would have been withheld from such amounts, had such
amounts been treated as taxable salary and not as Qualifying Dependent
Care Expenses or Qualified Health Care Expenses.

22



5.01

5.02

5.038

ARTICLE V. SALARY REDUCTIONS

Pre-Tax Premium(s). A Participant agrees to reduce the Participant’s salary or

wage each month by the amount of the Pre-Tax Premium(s) under the Benefit
Plan under a Salary Reduction Agreement.

Qualified Health Care Expense Account.

a.

Qualified Health Care Expenses shall be reimbursed to a Participant to the
extent the Participant has elected to reduce the Participant’s salary or wage
for the Plan Year under a valid Salary Reduction Agreement.

A Participant’s salary or wage may be reduced under this Section 5.02 in
an amount not to exceed the federally allowed maximum as adopted by the
NDPERS Board, as adjusted in accordance with Code section 125(i) to the
extent such adjustment is approved by the Board.

1. The salary reduction amount so elected shall be paid pro rata over the
number of consecutive pay periods in the Plan Year. The salary
reduction amount for any single pay period may not exceed the
amount of the Participant's salary or wage for that period. Salary
reduction amounts for a pay period shall be reduced by the amount it
exceeds the Participant’s salary or wage for that period.

2. For members of the Legislative Assembly, the salary reduction amount
may —vary per pay period; however, the total amount of salary
reduction must equal the annual election amount.

The Plan Administrator or designated agent shall establish individual
Qualified Health Care Expense accounts for each Participant and shall
credit to each Participant’s account salary reduction amounts elected under
this Section 5.02. The Plan Administrator or designated agent shall
reimburse Participants for Qualified Health Care Expenses in accordance
with Article VII.

Qualified Dependent Care Expense Account.

a.

Qualified Dependent Care Expenses may be reimbursed to a Participant to
the extent the Participant has elected to reduce the Participant’s salary or
wage for the Plan Year under a valid Salary Reduction Agreement, not to
exceed the amount in the Participant’'s account at the time reimbursement
is required.

A Participant’s salary or wage may be reduced under this Section 5.03
each Plan Year in an amount not to exceed the lesser of (1) the earned
income limitation described in Code section 129(b) or (2) $7,5005,800 or
$3,7502;500 if the Participant is married, but filing separately. In the case
of a married Participant who elected an amount in excess of $3,7502,500,
the Plan Administrator shall be entitled to rely on the Participant’s election

23



5.04

as constituting a certification by the Participant that he or she will file a
joint tax return.

1. The salary reduction amount so elected shall be paid pro rata over the
number of consecutive pay periods in the Plan Year. The salary
reduction amount for any single pay period may not exceed the
amount of the Participant’s salary or wage for the pay period. Salary
reduction amounts for a pay period shall be reduced by the amount it
exceeds the Participant’s salary or wage for that period.

2. For members of the Legislative Assembly, the salary reduction amount
may vary per pay period; however, the total amount of salary reduction
must equal the annual election amount.

c. The Plan Administrator or designated agent shall establish individual
Qualified Dependent Care Expense accounts for each Participant and shall
credit to each Participant’'s account salary reduction amounts contributed
under this Section 5.03. The Plan Administrator or designated agent shall
reimburse Participants for Qualified Dependent Care Expenses in
accordance with Article VII.

Funding of Health Savings Accounts (HSA).

Effective January 1, 2019. An Employee can elect to participate in the Health
Savings Account portion of the Plan by electing to make pre-tax contributions to
a HSA via a valid Salary Reduction Agreement. Such amounts will be contributed
to a Health Savings Account established and maintained outside this Plan by a
trustee or custodian. The benefits under the HSA portion of the Plan consist solely
of an Employee’s ability to make pre-tax contributions to a Health Savings
Account. The terms and conditions of each applicable Participant's HSA is
governed by the Health Savings Account trust and/or custodial agreement. An
Employee’s election under a Salary Reduction Agreement to contribute to a
Health Savings Account can be increased, decreased or revoked prospectively
at any time during the Plan Year. Contributions to an HSA cannot be elected with
benefits under a Qualified Health Care Expense account.

A participant who has an election for Qualified Health Care Expenses that is in
effect on the last day of a Plan Year cannot elect HSA contributions for any of the
first three months following the close of that Plan Year, unless the Participant’s
Qualified Health Care Expense account balance is $0 as of the last day of that
Plan Year.

In no event shall the amount contributed to a Participant's Health Savings
Account, including pre-tax contributions under this Plan, any after-tax employee
contributions, and any employer contributions, exceed the maximum amount
under Code section 223(b), as prorated for the number of months the Participant
is eligible to contribute to a HSA, in accordance with Code section 223(b).

24



5.05 Accounting. The Plan Administrator or designated agent shall maintain complete
records of all amounts to be credited as a contribution or debited as a
reimbursement of Qualified Health Care Expenses or Qualified Dependent Care
Expenses on behalf of any Participant for six (6) years.

25



6.01

6.02

6.03

ARTICLE VI. SALARY REDUCTION ELECTIONS

Election Period for Salary Reduction.

a.

In order to contribute to a Qualified Health Care Expense account or a
Qualified Dependent Care Expense account for a Plan Year, a Participant
must submit to the Plan Administrator an appropriate Salary Reduction
Agreement election form within the applicable election period.

An Employee who elects salary reduction for Pre-Tax Premium(s) must
submit to the Plan Administrator an appropriate Salary Reduction
Agreement within the applicable election period.

For the purpose of employee supplemental life insurance Pre-tax Premium
benefits for the first $50,000 of coverage, an employee may elect not to
participate by completing an appropriate Salary Reduction Agreement
declination form within the applicable election period.

Termination, Revocation, or Amendment of Salary Reduction Elections.

a.

A Participant’s Salary Reduction Agreement for a Plan Year shall terminate
at the end of the Plan Year. A Participant must make an affirmative election
for salary reduction for each Plan Year. Failure to make such an election
will result in waiving participation in the Plan for the Plan Year.

The employee supplemental life insurance Pre-tax benefits for the first
$50,000 of coverage will be automatic unless an Employee declines this
action.

¢. Termination, revocation or amendment of salary reduction elections may only

be made by a Participant in accordance with Article I11.

Limitations on Exclusion from Gross Income for Dependent Care Expense

Account.

a.

Reimbursements under the Plan for Qualified Dependent Care Expenses
shall be excluded from the gross income of a Participant during a Plan Year
in accordance with Code section 129. An Employee’s exclusion from gross
income under the Plan in a calendar year shall not exceed the lesser of:

1. $75,0500 if the Employee is married and filing a joint return or if the
Employee is a single parent or $32,7560 if the eEmployee is married,
but filing separately; or

2. In the case of an Employee who is not married at the close of such
Plan Year, the Earned Income of such Employee for such Plan Year;
or

26



6.04

6.05

3. In the case of an Employee who is married at the close of such Plan
Year, the lesser of the Earned Income of such Employee or the Earned
Income of the Spouse of such Employee for such Plan Year.

To the extent reimbursements exceed the maximum amount excludable
from a Participant’s gross income, the reimbursements shall be treated as
taxable income to the Participant.

The amount excluded from the income of an Employee under the Plan for
any Plan Year shall not include:

1. Payments made or incurred to an individual who can be claimed as a
Dependent Child of the Employee or the Spouse of such Employee;
or

2. Payments made or incurred to an individual who is a child, under the
age of nineteen (19), of such Employee or the Spouse of such
Employee.

Forfeiture of Salary Reduction Amounts.

a.

If a Participant fails to claim any amounts in the Qualified Health Care
Expense account or Qualified Dependent Care Expense account by the
time allowed in Section 7.04, d., and Section 7.05, d., such amounts shall
not be carried over to reimburse the Participant for expenses incurred
during a subsequent Plan Year and rights to such amounts shall be forfeited
by the Participant.

All forfeitures under this Plan shall be used first to offset any losses
experienced by the Board during the Plan Year as a result of making
reimbursements with respect to any Participant in excess of the amounts
paid by such Participant via salary reductions. Second, forfeitures shall be
used to reduce the Board’s cost of administering this Plan during the Plan
Year.

Amendment of Salary Reduction Elections Due To Leave of Absence,

Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) or Military Leave.

a.

Pre-Tax Premiums and Qualified Health Care Expense Account.

1. Leave with taxable compensation. Pre-tax contributions during a leave
will continue to be made if taxable compensation is due to the
Participant while on leave of absence, FMLA leave, or military leave.

2. Leave without taxable compensation. An unpaid leave of absence will
be considered a change in status, and the Participant may amend
salary reduction elections to be consistent with the change in status.

3. FMLA. A Participant commencing a qualifying leave under FMLA may,
to the extent required by the FMLA, continue to maintain coverage

27



under the Benefit Plan and Qualified Health Care Expense Account
under the terms and conditions set forth hereafter.

With respect to a Benefit Plan, for unpaid leaves of absence and
leaves under FMLA, if no coverage during leave is elected and the
Participant returns to active work during the same Plan Year, and the
salary reduction election has not been amended, as provided in 6.05,
a., 2., then the same election the Participant had before the leave must
be maintained for the remainder of the Plan Year upon return from the
leave.

(a) “Pre-pay option”: A Participant may make pre-tax contributions by
increasing his/her salary reduction contributions before taking
the leave, but only for the portion of the leave that occurs during
the Plan Year.

(b) “Catch-up option™: Employer will continue coverage during the
leave. A Participant must make pre-tax contributions after he or
she returns from leave to make up missed contributions.

A Participant may elect not to continue coverage during the leave. If
the Participant does not make the salary reduction on a pre-tax basis
or by after tax contributions described in paragraph 4 above, his/her
participation will cease the last day of the month in which a contribution
is received. The Participant may submit claims for eligible expenses
incurred before participation ended, and will be reimbursed for
Qualified Health Care Expenses as described in sSection 4.02 herein.

USERRA. If a Participant returns from a qualified military leave under
the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act
(USERRA) and commences employment again, he/she may choose
to become a Participant and salary reduction contributions will be
increased to reflect any contributions for the Plan Year not yet paid or
to amend the salary reduction election, as provided in paragraph 2
above, or to elect not to participate for the remainder of the Plan Year.

For the Qualified Health Care Expense account, if a Participant
revokes coverage upon commencement of the leave and elects to be
reinstated upon return from the leave, the Participant has a choice
between two options:

(@) Full Coverage: The Participant may maintain the same election
the Participant had before the leave and reinstate the level of
coverage in effect when the leave began, provided that the
Participant makes contributions to reduce his/her salary or wage
to fund the Qualified Health Care Expense account for the
contributions that were missed during the leave.

28



(b) Prorated Coverage: The Participant may reinstate a level of
coverage that is reduced by the amount of contributions to
reduce his/her salary or wage to fund the Qualified Health Care
Expense account that were missed during the leave.

b. Qualified Dependent Care Expense Account.

1.

Leave with taxable compensation. Pre-tax contributions during a leave
may be made if taxable compensation is due to the Participant while
on leave of absence, FMLA leave, or military leave and the employee
has Qualified Dependent Care Expenses.

Leave without taxable compensation. An unpaid leave of absence will
be considered a change in status, and the Participant may amend
salary reduction elections to be consistent with the change in status.

FMLA. A Participant commencing a qualifying leave under FMLA may
continue to maintain coverage under the Qualified Dependent Care
Expense Account under the terms and conditions set forth hereafter.
For ——unpaid leaves of absence and leaves under FMLA, if no
coverage during leave is elected and the Participant returns to active
work during the same Plan Year, and the salary reduction
election has not been amended, as provided in paragraph 2 above,
then the same election the Participant had before the leave must be
maintained for the remainder of the calendar year upon return from the
leave.

(@) “Pre-pay option”: A Participant may make pre-tax contributions
by increasing his/her salary reduction contributions before taking
the leave, but only for the portion of the leave that occurs during
the Plan Year.

(b) “Catch-up option”: Employer will continue coverage during the
leave. A Participant must make pre-tax contributions after he or
she returns from the leave to make up missed contributions.

5.4. A Participant may elect not to continue coverage during the leave. If

the Participant does not make the salary reduction on a pre-tax basis
described in paragraph 3 above, his/her participation will cease the last
day of the month in which a contribution is received. The Participant may
submit claims for eligible expenses incurred before participation ended,
and will be reimbursed as described in sSection 4.03 herein. Eligible
expenses are only those expenses that enable the Employee or the
Employee and the Employee’s Spouse to be gainfully employed or the
Spouse to be a Student. Any other expenses would not be reimbursable
during the leave of absence period.

6.5. USERRA. If a Participant returns from a qualified military leave under

USERRA and commences employment again, he/she may choose to
29



become a Participant and salary reduction contributions will be
increased to reflect any contributions for the Plan Year not yet paid or to
amend the salary reduction election, as provided in paragraph 2 above,
or to elect not to participate for the remainder of the Plan Year.

30



7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

ARTICLE VII. PAYMENT OF CLAIMS

Determination of Status of Eligible Expenses. After receiving an appropriately
submitted claim and the information required under Section 7.04 or Section 7.05,
the Plan Administrator shall determine whether such expenses are Qualified
Health Care Expenses or Qualified Dependent Care Expenses. The Plan
Administrator may delegate the authority to administer claims under the Plan to
a designated agent.

Payment of Claims. The Plan Administrator will authorize payment of properly
submitted claims for reimbursement at such intervals, as it may consider
appropriate.

Expenses. All administrative expenses incurred prior to the termination of the
Plan that arise in connection with the administration of the Plan shall be paid as
authorized by the Plan Administrator.

Claims Reimbursement for Qualified Health Care Expenses.

a. The Participant must submit a properly completed claim form to the Plan
Administrator or the designated agent along with written evidence from an
independent third party describing the Health Care Expense that has been
incurred, the person on whose behalf such Health Care Expense has been
incurred, the date such expense was incurred, the amount of such expense,
and such other information as the Plan Administrator may find necessary.

b. The Participant must submit with other required documents a signed
statement in such form as determined by the Plan Administrator certifying
that the expenses for which reimbursement is sought are expenses that the
Participant believes in good faith are Qualified Health Care Expenses.

c. The Plan Administrator reserves the right to verify to its satisfaction all
claimed expenses prior to reimbursement and to refuse to reimburse any
amounts which are not Qualified Health Care Expenses.

d. All claims for reimbursement must be submitted no later than April 30
following the end of the Plan Year in which the expense was incurred.

e. Claims reimbursement for Qualified Health Care Expenses using a debit
card shall be made in accordance with the terms of the debit card
agreement and Proposed Treasury Regulations section 1.125-6 and other
applicable IRS rulings.

Claims Reimbursement for Qualified Dependent Care Expenses.

a. To make a claim for reimbursement of Qualified Dependent Care Expenses,
the Participant shall submit a statement to the Plan Administrator or the
designated agent on an appropriate form adopted by the Plan Administrator
which may contain the following information:

31



10.

The Qualifying Individual(s) for whom the Qualified Dependent Care
Expenses were incurred;

A statement to substantiate that the dependent or dependents are
Qualifying Individuals, such as the age of the dependent or a statement
as to the physical or mental capacity of the dependent;

The nature of the services which will generate the Qualified Dependent
Care Expenses;

Written evidence from an independent third party stating the expenses
have been incurred, the amount of such expense, the date of such
expense, and such other information as the Plan Administrator in its
sole discretion may request;

The name of the person, organization or entity to who the expense was
paid, including the taxpayer identification number, and the relationship,
if any, of the person performing the services to the Participant;

A statement as to where the services were performed;

If the services are to be performed in a Dependent Care Center, a
statement verifying that each of the requirements for a Dependent Care
Center specified in Section 2.05 of the Plan are met;

A statement indicating whether the services are necessary to enable
the Participant to be gainfully employed;

If the Participant is married, a statement:
(&) thatthe Spouse is employed; or

(b) if the Spouse is not employed, a statement that he/she is
incapacitated or that he/she is a Student within the meaning of
Section 2.25 of the Plan.

If an Employee’s Spouse is not employed, not incapacitated, nor a
Student as defined in Section 2.25 at the time the expense was
incurred, the expense is not a Qualified Dependent Care Expense; and

A statement that the Qualified Dependent Care Expenses have not
been reimbursed and are not reimbursable under any other plan or by
any other entity.

The Participant must submit with other required documents a signed
statement in such form as determined by the Plan Administrator or
designated agent certifying that the expenses for which reimbursement is
sought are expenses that the Participant believes in good faith are Qualified
Dependent Care Expenses.

32



7.06

The Plan Administrator reserves the right to verify to its satisfaction all
claimed expenses prior to reimbursement and to refuse to reimburse any
amounts which are not Qualified Dependent Care Expenses.

All claims for reimbursement must be submitted not later than April 30
following the end of the Plan Year in which the expense was incurred.

Grace Period for Qualified Health Care Expenses. Amounts remaining in a

Participant's Qualified Health Care Expense account at the end of a Plan Year
can be used to reimburse the Participant for Qualified Health Care Expenses that
are incurred during Grace Period under the following conditions:

a.

Applicability. In order for an individual to be reimbursed for Qualified Health
Care Expenses incurred during a Grace Period from amounts remaining in
his or her Qualified Health Care Expense account at the end of the Plan
Year to which that Grace Period relates, he or she must be either (1) a
Participant with Health Care Expense account coverage that is in effect on
the last day of that Plan Year; or (2) a Qualified Beneficiary (as defined
under COBRA) who has COBRA coverage under the Health Care Expense
account component on the last day of that Plan Year.

No Cash-Out or Conversion. Prior Plan Year Qualified Health Care Expense
accounts may not be cashed out or converted to any other taxable or
nontaxable benefit. For example, a prior Plan Year Health Care Expense
account may not be used to reimburse Qualified Dependent Care
Expenses.

Reimbursement of Grace Period Expenses. Qualified Health Care
Expenses incurred during a Grace Period and approved for reimbursement
in accordance with the Plan’s claims procedure for the Qualified Health
Care Expense account component will be reimbursed and charged first from
any available prior Plan Year Qualified Health Care Expense account
balance. If a current Plan Year Qualified Health Care Expense should
subsequently be submitted, the claims for reimbursement under the
Qualified Health Care Expense account component will be paid in the order
in which they are approved. Once paid, a claim will not be reprocessed so
as to pay it (or treat it as paid) from amounts attributable to a different Plan
Year or period of coverage.

Run-Out Period and Forfeitures. Claims for reimbursement of Qualified
Health Care Expenses incurred during a Plan Year or its related Grace
Period must be submitted no later than the April 30 following the close of
the Plan Year in order to be reimbursed from prior Plan Year Qualified
Health Care Expense account amounts. Any prior Plan Year Qualified
Health Care Expense account amounts that remain after all reimbursement
have been made for the Plan Year and its related Grace Period shall not be
carried over to reimburse the Participant for expenses incurred after the
Grace Period ends.

33



7.07

The Participant will forfeit all rights with respect to such balance, which will
be subject to the Plan’s provisions regarding forfeitures in sSection 6.04 of
the Plan.

Qualified Health Care Expense Account Balance, Grace Period and Health
Savings Accounts. This Plan’s Qualified Health Care Expense account
operates with a Grace Period. Under IRS rules regarding a Qualified Health
Care Expense Account’s Grace Period, if a Participant’s Qualified Health
Care Expense Account is in effect with any balance in that account on the
last day of a Plan Year, the Participant (and their Spouse, if married), nor
an Employer on behalf of the Participant, can contribute to a Health Savings
Account during the first three (3) months following the close of the Plan
Year.

Employee Participation in a Qualified Health Care Expenses Account
Prevents Spouse or Dependent Child from Contributing to an HSA. Since
this Plan’s Qualified Health Care Expenses account is a general purpose
account that permits reimbursement of qualifying medical expenses of
Employees, Spouses and Dependent Children, under IRS rules, if the
Spouse (or Dependent Child) of the Employee is enrolled in a High
Deductible Health Plan with Health Savings Account, the Spouse (and
Dependent Child) cannot contribute to an HSA while the Employee is
enrolled in a general purpose Qualified Health Care Expenses account.

Grace Period for Qualified Dependent Care Expenses. Amounts remaining in

a Participant's Qualified Dependent Care Expense account at the end of a Plan
Year can be used to reimburse the Participant for Qualified Dependent Care
Expenses that are incurred during the Grace Period under the following
conditions:

a.

Applicability. In order for an individual to be reimbursed for Qualified
Dependent Care Expenses incurred during a Grace Period from
amounts remaining in his or her Qualified Dependent Care Expense
Account at the end of the Plan Year to which that Grace Period relates, he
or she must be a Participant with Qualified Dependent Care Expense
account coverage that is in effect on the last day of that Plan Year.

No Cash-Out or Conversion. Prior Plan Year Qualified Dependent Care
Expense accounts may not be cashed out or converted to any other taxable
or nontaxable benefit. For example, a Prior Plan Year Qualified Dependent
Care Expense account may not be used to reimburse Qualified Health Care
Expenses.

Reimbursement of Grace Period Expenses. Qualified Dependent Care
Expenses incurred during a Grace Period and approved for reimbursement
in accordance with the Plan's claims procedure for the Qualified Dependent
Care Expense account will be reimbursed and charged first from any
available prior Plan Year Qualified Dependent Care Expense account. If a
current Plan Year Qualified Dependent Care Expense should subsequently
be submitted, the claims for reimbursement under the Qualified Dependent

34




Care Expense account will be paid in the order in which they are approved.
Once paid, a claim will not be reprocessed so as to pay it (or treat it as paid)
from amounts attributable to a different Plan Year or period of coverage.

Run-Out Period and Forfeitures. Claims for reimbursement of Qualified
Dependent Care Expenses incurred during a Plan Year or its related Grace
Period must be submitted no later than the April 30 following the close of
the Plan Year in order to be reimbursed from a prior Plan Year Qualified
Dependent Care  Expense account balance. Any prior Plan Year
Qualified Dependent Care Expense account balance that remain after all
reimbursements have been made for the Plan Year and its related Grace
Period shall not be carried over to reimburse the Participant for expenses
incurred after the Grace Period ends.

The Participant will forfeit all rights with respect to such balance, which will
be subject to the Plan's provisions regarding forfeitures in Section 6.04 of
the Plan.

Grace Period Effect on Dependent Care Expense Account Exclusions.
Grace Periods may have an adverse effect on the exclusions or credits that
individuals report on their personal income tax return. There may be taxable
income to an individual if the Qualified Dependent Care Expense account
reimbursements exceed IRS permitted Qualified Dependent Care Expense
Account exclusion amounts as a result of the Grace Period. For example, if
as a result of the Grace Period, a participant receives Qualified Dependent
Care Expense account reimbursements for services incurred in a year that
exceed his or her maximum Qualified Dependent Care Expense account
exclusion, the excess may be included in the Participant’s taxable income.
Individuals should be guided by the advice of their tax professional(s).

35



8.01

8.02

8.03

8.04

ARTICLE VIIl. ADMINISTRATION

Board Powers and Duties. The Board shall interpret the Plan and decide all
matters arising thereunder, including the right to remedy possible ambiguities,
inconsistencies, or omissions. All determinations of the Board with respect to any
matter under the Plan shall be conclusive and binding on all persons. The Board
shall:

a. Make and enforce administrative rules or policies.
b. Decide questions concerning the Plan.

c. Provide a review to any Participant whose claim for benefits has been
denied in whole or in part.

Plan Administrator Duties. The Plan Administrator or designated agent shall
manage and administer the Plan. The Plan Administrator shall:

a. Require any person to furnish such information as it may request for the
purpose of the proper administration of the Plan and as a condition to
receiving any benefits under the Plan.

b. Prescribe the use of administrative policies and procedures as it considers
necessary for the efficient administration of the Plan.

c. Determine the eligibility of any Employee to participate in the Plan, in
accordance with the provisions of the Plan.

d. Determine the amount of benefits which are payable to any person in
accordance with the provisions of the Plan.

Additional Operating Rules. A Participant's salary reduction amount will
generally not be subject to federal income tax withholding or to applicable Social
Security (FICA) tax withholding. Salary reduction amounts will generally not be
subject to any state income tax withholding unless otherwise prohibited by
applicable state law.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information. The Health FSA Plan
will use protected health information (PHI) only to the extent of and in accordance
with the uses and disclosures permitted by the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), as amended by the Health Information
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH). Specifically, the
Health FSA Plan will use and disclose PHI for purposes related to health care
treatment, payment for health care and health care operations. The Health FSA
Plan rarely, if ever, uses or discloses PHI for treatment purposes. In addition, the
Health FSA Plan does not use or disclose PHI that is genetic information (as
defined in 45 CFR 160.103) for underwriting purposes, as set forth in 45 CFR
164.502(a)(5)(1)).

36



The Health FSA Plan may disclose PHI to a Benefit Plan for purposes related to
administration of these plans, as permitted by law.

The Health FSA Plan will disclose PHI to the Employer only upon receipt of a
certification from the Employer that the Employer, as Plan sponsor agrees to:

a.

Not use or further disclose PHI other than as permitted or required by the
Health FSA Plan document or as required by law;

Ensure that any agents to whom the Health FSA Plan sponsor provides PHI
received from the Health FSA Plan agree to the same restrictions and
conditions that apply to the Health FSA Plan sponsor with respect to such
PHI;

Not use or disclose PHI for employment-related actions and decisions
unless authorized by an individual;

Not use or discloses PHI in connection with any other benefit or employee
benefit plan of the Health FSA Plan sponsor unless authorized by an
individual;

Report to the Health FSA Plan any PHI use or disclosure that is inconsistent
with the uses or disclosure provided for of which it becomes aware;

Make PHI available to an individual in accordance with HIPAA’s access
requirements;

Make PHI available for amendment and incorporate any amendments to
PHI in accordance with HIPAA;

Make available the information required to provide an accounting of
disclosures;

Make internal practices, books and records relating to the use and
disclosure of PHI received from the Health FSA Plan available to the HHS
Secretary for the purposes of determining the Health FSA Plan’s
compliance with HIPAA;

If feasible, return or destroy all PHI received from the Health FSA Plan that
the Plan sponsor still maintains in any form, and retain no copies of such
PHI when no longer needed for the purpose for which disclosure was made
(or if return or destruction is not feasible, limit further uses and disclosures
to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible); and

If a breach of unsecured protected health information (PHI) occurs, the
Health FSA Plan will notify affected individuals in accordance with
applicable federal law and regulations.

In accordance with HIPAA, only the Executive Director of the Public Employees
Retirement System and staff designated by the Executive Director may be given

37



access to PHI. Such persons may only have access to and use and disclose PHI
for Health FSA Plan administration functions that the Plan sponsor performs for
the Health FSA Plan. If such persons do not comply with this Section 8.04, the
Health FSA Plan sponsor shall provide a mechanism for resolving issues of
noncompliance, including disciplinary sanctions.

In addition, the Health FSA Plan sponsor will comply with the following HIPAA
security standards:

a.

Safeguards. The plan sponsor shall implement administrative, physical,
and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the electronic protected health
information that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the
Health FSA Plan, as required under 45 CFR Part 160 and Subparts A and
C of Part 164 (the “HIPAA Security Standards”).

Agents. The plan sponsor shall ensure that any agent, including a
subcontractor, to whom it provides electronic protected health information
agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to protect
such information

Security Incidents. The plans sponsor shall report to the Health FSA Plan
any security incident under the HIPAA Security Standards of which it
becomes aware.

Adequate Separation. The plan sponsor shall establish reasonable and
appropriate security measures to ensure adequate separation between the
Health FSA Plan and plan sponsor.

38



9.01

9.02

9.03

ARTICLE IX. APPEALS PROCEDURE

Notice to Employee. Any person who claims he/she has been denied a benefit
under the Plan shall be entitled, upon written request to the Plan Administrator
to receive, within sixty (60) days of receipt of such request, a written notice of
such action, together with a full and clear statement of the specific reasons
therefore, citing pertinent provisions of the Plan and a statement of the procedure
to be followed in requesting a review of his/her claim.

Late Claim_Appeal. Claims for the reimbursement of Qualified Health Care
Expenses incurred in a Plan Year shall be paid as soon after a claim has been
filed as is administratively practicable. If a Participant fails to submit a claim within
the four (4) month period immediately following end of the Plan Year, those
Health Care Expense claims shall not be considered for reimbursement by the
Plan Administrator or designated agent; provided however, after four (4) months
from the close of the Plan Year and before the end of three hundred sixty (360)
days following the close of the Plan Year, a Participant may request the Board
to authorize reimbursement of a Qualifying Health Care Expense incurred during
the Plan Year by the Participant. The Participant must submit a written request
to the Board specifying the request and the reason(s) why the Qualifying Health
Care Expense was not submitted on or before the end of the 4th month following
the close of the Plan Year. The Board may authorize payment for any reason
constituting good cause not involving fault on the part of the Participant if such
payment would be permitted under the Plan. Upon authorization of the Board,
the Plan Administrator or designated agent shall reimburse the Participant for the
amount not to exceed the Qualified Health Care Expense account balance for
that Plan Year. The decision of the Board shall be final.

Appeal of Denial of Benefit. If the claimant wishes further consideration of
his/her claim, he/she may request a review. The Plan Administrator shall
schedule a review by the Board on the issue within sixty (60) days following
receipt of the claimant’s request for such review. The decision following such
review shall be communicated in writing to the claimant and, if the claim is
denied, shall set forth the specific reasons for such denial, citing the pertinent
provisions of the Plan. The decision of the Board as to all claims shall be final.

39



ARTICLE X. AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF THE PLAN

The Board reserves the power at any time and from time to time (and retroactively if
necessary or appropriate to meet the requirements of the Code) to modify or amend, in
whole or in part, any or all of the provisions of the Plan provided, however, that no such
modifications or amendment shall divest a Participant of a right to a benefit to which he
becomes entitled in accordance with the Plan. The Board reserves the power to
discontinue or terminate the Plan at any time. Any such amendment, discontinuance or
termination shall be effective as of such date as the Board shall determine.

40



11.01

11.02

11.03

11.04

11.05

11.06

ARTICLE XI. GENERAL PROVISIONS

No Right to be Retained in Employment. Nothing contained in the Plan shall
give any Employee the right to be retained in the employment of any Employer
or affect the right of the Employer to dismiss any Employee.

Alienation of Benefits. No benefit under the Plan is subject to anticipation,
alienation, sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, encumbrance or charge, and any
attempt to do so is void.

Use of Form Required. All communications in connection with the Plan made
by a Participant are effective only when submitted to the Plan Administrator or
designated agent.

Applicable Law. The provisions of the Plan shall be construed, administered
and enforced according to applicable federal law and the laws of the State of
North Dakota.

Statement of Benefits. On or before January 31 of each year, the Board or a
designated agent will furnish each Participant who received Qualified Dependent
Care Expense account benefits under the Plan a written statement on
appropriate forms required by the Internal Revenue Service, showing the
amounts paid or incurred by the Plan in providing reimbursement under the Plan
for Qualified Dependent Care Expenses with respect to the Participant for the
prior Plan Year.

Effect of Mistake. In the event of a mistake as to the eligibility or participation of
an Employee, the allocations made to the account of a Participant, or the amount
of benefits paid or to be paid to a Participant or other person, the Plan shall, to
the extent it deems administratively possible and otherwise permissible under
Code section 125 or the regulations issued thereunder, cause to be allocated or
cause to be withheld or accelerated, or otherwise make adjustment of, such
amounts as it will in its judgment accord to such Participant or other person the
credits to the account or distributions to which he/she is properly entitled under
the Plan. Such actions by the Plan may include withholding any amounts due to
the Plan or the Employer from compensation paid by the Employer.

41



V. GROUP INSURANCE / FLEXCOMP
B. Medicare Part D Plan Contract Amendment

Material for this agenda item will be sent out
when it has been finalized



A North Dakota Rebecca Fricke

Public Employees Retirement System Executive Director

O 0 0 O
Y‘ S 1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 e PO Box 1657 (701) 328-3900
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 1-800-803-7377
Fax (701) 328-3920  Email ndpers-info@nd.gov Website www.ndpers.nd.gov
TO: NDPERS Board
FROM: Katheryne Korom
DATE: September 9, 2025
SUBJECT: 2024 Active Healthcare Report

Please find the NDPERS Active Healthcare Report for the 2024 calendar year attached.
Hospital utilization (55% of total charges) decreased 0.6%, physician/clinical utilization (34%
of total charges) increased 0.6%, and pharmacy utilization (11% of total charges) was
stable.

A similar agency-specific report is developed for the large groups on the NDPERS Health
Plan (over 100 employees).

If you have any questions, we will be available at the NDPERS Board Meeting.
This item is informational and does not require any action by the Board.

Attachment



AN,
2024 NDPERS Healthcare

Repori

The NDPERS Healthcare Report provides your agency with a snapshot of
your agency’s participation and utilization of the Health Insurance Plan.

During 2024, 18,170 active North Dakota state employees were enrolled

as the main subscriber in the Plan. These employees have an additional
31,133 dependents.




Hospital

The state’s health plan members incurred 586,058 hospital claims/services from January to December 2024.
These claims amounted to $441,342,861 in total charges. The NDPERS Health Plan paid $138,873,799 toward

these charges.

HOSPITAL UTILIZATION

ADMISSION: 01/2024 - 12/2024

CLAIMS % CHARGES PAID
OTHER 12,689 2 $37,276,623  $10,779,000
IP NEWBORN 2,755 0  $16,581,359 $5,922,734
IP MEDICAL 106,319 18  $94,707,240  $24,673,964
IP MATERNITY 179 0 $671,950 $199,388
IP SURGICAL 12,660 2 $87,548,849  $24,227,684
IP PSYCH 1,553 0 $8,263,812 $2,205,476
IP CHEM DEP 469 1 $1,912,594 $553,260
OP SURGICAL 3,279 1 $11,199,446 $4,520,410
OP MEDICAL 444560 76  $182,563,564  $65,335,852
SNF, HOSPICE & SWING BED 124 0 $48,045 $28,915
HOME HEALTH AG 1,471 0 $569,379 $427,117
TOTAL 586,058 100  $441,342,861  $138,873,799

CLAIM TYPE: IP=Inpatient OP=Qutpatient




Physician/Clinic

ND active employees incurred 1,159,348 physician/clinic services from January to December 2024. These
services amounted to $270,251,526 in total charges. The NDPERS Health Plan paid $121,429,669 toward these
charges.

PHYSICIAN/CLINIC UTILIZATION

SERVICE DATE: 01/2024 - 12/2024

SERVICES % CHARGES PAID
OTHER 15 0 $3,519 $845
SURGERY-OP 7,310 0  $10,530,273 $4,112,915
IP VISITS 101,962 9  $50,193,239  $20,490,061
OP / ER VISITS 24,947 2 $10,098,878 $4,140,870
OFFICE CALLS 957,318 83  $187,794,091  $88,974,787
CHEM/PSYCH 814 0 $206,706 $101,663
THERAPIES 54 0 $40,638 $14,698
DIAGNOSTIC 66,928 6  $11,384,181 $3,593,828
TOTAL 1,159,348 100  $270,251,526  $121,429,669




Prescription Drugs

ND active employees incurred 711,873 pharmacy claims from January to December 2024. These claims
amounted to $91,178,248 in total charges. The NDPERS Health Plan paid $82,939,068 toward these charges.

PRESCRIPTION DRUGS UTILIZATION

FILL DATE: 01/2024 - 12/2024

CLAIMS % CHARGES PAID

NON-GENERIC 114,934 16 $79,195,237  $74,597,333

GENERIC 596,939 84  $11,983,011 $8,341,735
TOTAL 711,873 100  $91,178,248  $82,939,068
NDPERS

Active Health Insurance Claims
January - December 2024

200,000
180,000

160,000

140,000
120,000
100,000

80,000

60,000 -~ — _— = g

40,000

20,000

™ S ™ ™ ™ 3 ™ 3 ™ ™
SR I I IR R IR I R I IR R
N N o N o\ ) A\ N\ o\ RS o o

e PhySiCian e HOSpita] e Pharmacy = e Total ~ ceceeece- Linear (Total)

Percentages




EMPLOYEES, SPOUSES, & CHILDREN

BY MEMBERSHIP & CLAIM TYPE

MEMBERSHIP DATE: 01/2024 - 12/2024

MEMBERSHIP HOSPITAL CLAIMS  PHYSICIAN SERVICES  PHARMACY CLAIMS

Sum % Sum % Sum % Sum %
CHILDREN 19,938 40 131,812 22 366,672 31 144,415 20
EMPLOYEE 18,170 37 274,297 47 495,151 43 357,983 50
SPOUSE 11,195 23 179,949 31 297,525 26 209,475 30
TOTAL 49,303 100 586,058 100 1,159,348 100 711,873 100




Summary

The following chart shows that the 2024 NDPERS per capita charged and paid claims were lower than in 2023.

$1,400

$1,200

$1,000

$800

$600

$400

$200

S0

$829
§755

$276

$237

B NDPERS Charged 2023

Hospital

NDPERS HEALTH PLAN
Active Contracts 2024

$1,167
$1,116

$483

$459
$216  »233
I $96 I $105 $123 $110 $128 $117
Physician Pharmacy Total

B NDPERS Paid 2023 B NDPERS Charged 2024 B NDPERS Paid 2024



At a Glance

TOTAL NDPERS PLAN PARTICIPATION

This graph depicts the average amount the NDPERS Health Plan paid per member per
month (per capita) in the last two years.

Active employees claims and services amount to $738 per capita level. The cost for
dependents of active employees in the Plan ranges at about $S451 per person per
month. The retired membership’s per capita costs are close to $287 per retiree and
$225 per dependent.

Overall, this graph reflects the 2024 NDPERS health plan cost per person per month
stands at $510 per person per month vs $526 in 2023. In addition to this, the NDPERS
health plan currently pays $37.40 per month per contract in administration costs.

NDPERS HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN
Active Health Insurance Claims 2024

$700.00

$600.00

$400.00

$300.00

$200.00 W

[a2] o o o o o o o o o o o < < < < < < < < < < < <
(o] (o) o (o] (o] (o] N o o (o] (o] (o] (o) (o) N (o] (o] (o] N (o) (o] N (o] (o]
o o o o o o o o o (=] o o o o o o o o o o o (=] o o
N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
~ SN S SN SN SN S S TS CCTSENE TS TS TSNS TS TS TS TS CCTYS TS CTCTSESEECTCTSYEYSYSICTCTYSYEE]] CSSY ™

e HOsital == Physician e Pharmacy e Total



144

ND Public Employees Retirement System

1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 | PO Box 1657 | Bismarck, ND 58502-1657
P:701.328.3900 | TF: 800.803.7377 | F: 701.328.3920
https://www.ndpers.nd.gov/




North Dakota

Public Employees Retirement System
1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 e PO Box 1657
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657

Fax (701) 328-3920

Memorandum

Email ndpers-info@nd.gov Website www.ndpers.nd.gov

TO: NDPERS Board
FROM: Shawna Piatz

DATE: September 9, 2025
SUBJECT: Audit Committee Memo

Attached is the agenda from the meeting on August 18, 2025. Below are a few of the items
which were discussed at the meeting.

Retirement Benefit Payment Status Report — Information was provided to the Audit
Committee, which summarizes the accuracy percentages of the new monthly
retirement benefit and refund payments.

As of June 1, 2025, 347 of the 1,067 new retirees or $1,546,336 of the $4,178,212
total gross benefits issued have been audited.

Rebecca Fricke
Executive Director
(701) 328-3900
1-800-803-7377

Internal Compliance /
Calculation Other Accuracy Overall Accuracy
Accuracy Rate Rate Rate

98.56% 96.86% 95.39%

As of August 1, 2025, 77 of the 240 new retirees or $311,878 of the $1,027,786 total
gross benefits issued have been audited.

Internal Compliance /
Calculation Other Accuracy Overall Accuracy
Accuracy Rate Rate Rate

100% 100% 100%




As of June 1, 2025, 185 of the 2,120 or $5,851,500 of the $21,859,092 total gross
refunds issued for FY 2025 were audited.

Internal Compliance /
Calculation Other Accuracy Overall Accuracy
Accuracy Rate Rate Rate

97.84% 99.46% 97.30%

As of August 1, 2025, 31 of the 247 or $1,253,515 of the $3,559,328 total gross
refunds issued for FY 2026 were audited. The fiscal year-to-date internal calculation
accuracy rate is 100% for FY 2026. The fiscal year-to-date compliance/other
accuracy rate is 93.55% resulting in an overall accuracy rate of 93.55% for FY 2026.

Internal Compliance /
Calculation Other Accuracy Overall Accuracy
Accuracy Rate Rate Rate

100% 93.55% 93.55%

e Employer Wage and Census Data Audit Report — Internal Audit completed an audit
on the City of Jamestown wages and census data. Information from January 1, 2023
through June 30, 2024 was reviewed. There was one finding for PERS staff that has
been corrected. A summary of the results were provided to the Audit Committee to
review.

e Outstanding Issues Status Report — The Outstanding Issues Status report reflects
new and outstanding issues as of July 31, 2025. Updates were provided on the 23
existing recommendations and 9 new recommendations were added to the report. Of
the 32 total outstanding issues, 10 were closed out and 22 issues remain
outstanding. The new and outstanding issues were reviewed and discussed.

The approved minutes from the May 12, 2025 Audit Committee meeting may be viewed on
the NDPERS website at www.ndpers.nd.gov.

The next regular audit committee meeting is scheduled virtually and in person for November
24, 2025 at 3:00 pm. This is for your information.

Attachment


http://www.ndpers.nd.gov/

A North Dakota Rebecca Fricke

Public Employees Retirement System Executive Director

[ )
. i (701) 328-3900
S Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 1-800-803-7377

Fax (701) 328-3920  Email ndpers-info@nd.gov Website www.ndpers.nd.gov

Attachment
Audit Committee Agenda

Location: NDPERS Conference Room, 1600 East Century Avenue, Bismarck ND
By phone: 701.328.0950 Conference ID: 967 365 345#

Date: Monday August 18, 2025

Time: 3:00 P.M. Join the meeting now

I. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE CONSIDERATION
A. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Consideration

Il. AUDIT COMMITTEE MINUTES
A. May 12, 2025 Audit Committee Minutes (Committee Action)

lll. INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS

A. Quarterly Audit Plan Status Report
Retirement Benefit Payment Status Report
Employer Wage and Census Data Audit
Benefit / Premium Adjustments Report
Outstanding Issues Status Report

mooOw

IV. ADMINISTRATIVE

Audit Committee Charter Matrix
Internal Audit Charter Matrix
Report on Consultant Fees
Travel Expenditures

CPE, Training and Webinars

mooOw>

*Next Audit Committee meeting: November 24, 2025



A North Dakota Rebecca Fricke

000 0 Public Employees Retirement System Executive Director
Y‘ S 1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 e PO Box 1657 (701) 328-3900
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 1-800-803-7377
Fax (701) 328-3920  Email ndpers-info@nd.gov Website www.ndpers.nd.gov

TO: NDPERS Board

FROM: Rebecca

DATE: September 9, 2025

SUBJECT: Contracts under $10,000

Attached is a document that shows the contracts under $10,000 that have been signed
since the last update. Please let me know if you have any questions on any of these
contracts.

This topic is informational only.



All Contracts Signed During 2025:
Vendor

Empower

Inter Office

Rolette County Soil Conservation District

UHY

Great Plains Housing Authority

Richland School District

Ellendale Public School

Inter Office

Rolette Public School

Inter Office

Souris Valley Special Education

Inter Office

City of Cavalier

McHenry County

Inter Office

City of Walhalla

City of Stanley

Innovis Health, LLC

Empower Roth 457 Programming

Williams County

Oliver County

Mountrail County

ND Safety Council

McLean Sheridan Rural Water District

McKenzie County

Office Lease - 4th Amendment

Stutsman County

West Fargo Park District

City of Dickinson

City of Williston

McLean County

City of Minot

Billings County

Mohall Lansford Sherwood School

Amount

1,176.16

824.76

1,171.66

824.76

ot to exceed $9,999

AP PR APPRPADPPS PR APPRDPLPDPRBOPHLHPRH

Contracts Signed Since Last Reported:

Inter Office
Inter Office

1,206.66
1,206.66

@ B

Attachment

Notes
457 Plan Catch-up Opt Out Forms
Office Chair
Joined Deferred Compensation Plan 1/1/25
GASB 68 & 74 Management Rep. Letters
Joined Deferred Compensation Plan 7/1/25
Joined Deferred Compensation Plan 2/1/25
Joined Deferred Compensation Plan 1/1/25
Rising Desk
Joined Deferred Compensation Plan 3/1/25
Office Chair
Joined Deferred Compensation Plan 5/1/25
Rising Desk
Joined Deferred Compensation Plan 6/1/25
Joined Public Safety Plan 5/1/2025
Risking Desk
Joined Deferred Compensation Plan 5/1/25
Joined Public Safety Plan 6/1/25
Disability Medical Determination Consultant
Reserve place for programming Roth 457
Expanded Public Safety Eligibility 8/1/2025
Joined Public Safety Plan 7/1/2025
Expanded Public Safety Eligibility 8/1/2025
CPR & AED Training for Staff
Joined Retirement & Deferred Comp Plans 8/1/2025
Expanded Public Safety Plan 8/1/2025
Additional Training Room Space
Expanded Public Safety Plan 8/1/2025
Joined Deferred Compensation 1/1/2025
Expanded Public Safety Plan 8/1/2025
Expanded Public Safety Eligibility 8/1/2025
Expanded Public Safety Plan 8/1/2025
Expanded Public Safety Eligibility 1/1/2026
Expanded Public Safety Plan 8/1/2025
Joined Deferred Compensation 8/1/2025

Office Chair
Office Chair



A North Dakota Rebecca Fricke

Pyl Public Employees Retirement System Executive Director
S 1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 @ PO Box 1657 (701) 328-3900
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 1-800-803-7377

Fax (701) 328-3920  Email ndpers-info@nd.gov Website www.ndpers.nd.gov

Memorandum

TO: NDPERS Board

FROM: Marcy Aldinger

DATE: September 9, 2025

SUBJECT: Unforeseeable Financial Hardship Case #943

At the August Board meeting, the participant requested a withdrawal from the State of North
Dakota 457 Deferred Compensation Plan in the amount of $65,000.00 to assist in meeting
financial obligations for the support of the participant’s son and grandson’s medical, daycare,
living expenses, automobile replacement, attorney fees, as well as the member’s daughter-in-
law’s funeral expenses. The participant had not provided documentation to substantiate the
expenses.

The Board requested the participant send the supporting expense documentation so the request
could be reconsidered at the September 9, 2025 meeting. On August 29, 2025, NDPERS
received two medical bills for the participant’s son totaling $8,587.36 (Attachment 1).
Attachment 2 provides the information provided to the Board at the August meeting.

The participant’s total deferred compensation account balance as of July 8, 2025, was
$64,913.00. The participant has suspended contributions to the deferred compensation
account.

According to IRC 457 guidelines, the amount requested must be less than or equal to the
financial need. According to the IRC section 457 regulations, financial hardship is defined as an
unforeseeable emergency resulting from a sudden and unexpected illness or accident occurring
to the participant or one of the participant’s dependents, loss of the participant’s property due to
casualty, or other similar extraordinary and unforeseeable circumstances arising as a result of
events beyond the participant’s control. A reference guide is included in the materials
(Attachment #3).



The following is the relevant North Dakota authority:

N.D.A.C. 8§ 71-04-03-05. Unforeseeable emergency.

A participant who, prior to separation from service, experiences an unforeseeable emergency as
defined in section 71-04-01-01 may apply for a distribution of the participant's deferred
compensation account to the extent reasonably needed to satisfy the financial need. The
participant may make application by completing a financial hardship form and delivering it to the
retirement board offices.

N.D.A.C. § 71-04-01-01(13)

"Unforeseeable emergency" means a severe financial hardship to the participant resulting from
a sudden and unexpected illness or accident of the participant, the participant's spouse or
dependent of the participant, loss of the participant's property due to casualty, or other similar
extraordinary and unforeseeable circumstances arising as a result of events beyond the control
of the participant.

Board Action Requested

Approve or deny applicant’s request for a hardship withdrawal from their State of North Dakota
457 Deferred Compensation Plan account.




A North Dakota Rebecca Fricke

000 0 Public Employees Retirement System Executive Director
Y‘ S 1600 East Century Avenue, Suite 2 @ PO Box 1657 (701) 328-3900
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 1-800-803-7377
Fax (701) 328-3920  Email ndpers-info@nd.gov Website www.ndpers.nd.gov
TO: NDPERS Board
FROM: Marcy Aldinger
DATE: September 9, 2025
SUBJECT: Unforeseeable Financial Hardship Case #953

The participant is requesting a withdrawal from the State of North Dakota 457 Deferred
Compensation Plan in the amount of $3,215.30 to assist in meeting financial obligations for
outstanding medical bills, interest and legal fees associated with the collection of the medical
bills. The participant’s total deferred compensation account balance as of September 2, 2025,
was $19,444.69. The participant has suspended contributions to the deferred compensation
account.

The participant received judgement papers from past medical bills that went to collections. The
participant did not know these bill were in collections. The participant’s financial status is
provided in the income and expense statement in Part L, M and N on the application
(Attachment #1). Statements substantiating income and expenses have been provided.
(Attachment #1). The participant’s outstanding medical obligations have been provided along
with the legal collection document (Attachment #1).

Sanford Fargo $ 92511 |substantiated
Sanford Fargo Interest $ 176.09 |substantiated
Sanford Wahpeton $1,577.38 |substantiated
Sanford Wahpeton Interest $§ 226.11 |substantiated
General Radiology $§ 67.70 |substantiated
General Radiology Interest $ 1091 |substantiated
Total medical + interest $2,983.30 |substantiated
Legal Fees § 23200 |Per Participant, "No documentation for

the legal fees and interest, when | called
AAA last they told me the amount due”.
The participant said if they cannot
get the documentation, to please just
approve $2,983.30.

Total medical + interest + legal | $3,215.30




According to IRC 457 guidelines, the amount requested must be less than or equal to the
financial need. According to the IRC section 457 regulations, financial hardship is defined as an
unforeseeable emergency resulting from a sudden and unexpected illness or accident occurring
to the participant or one of the participant’s dependents, loss of the participant’s property due to
casualty, or other similar extraordinary and unforeseeable circumstances arising as a result of
events beyond the participant’s control. A reference guide is included in the materials
(Attachment #2).

Below you will find the relevant North Dakota authority.

N.D.A.C. 8§ 71-04-03-05. Unforeseeable emergency.

A participant who, prior to separation from service, experiences an unforeseeable emergency as
defined in section 71-04-01-01 may apply for a distribution of the participant's deferred
compensation account to the extent reasonably needed to satisfy the financial need. The
participant may make application by completing a financial hardship form and delivering it to the
retirement board offices.

N.D.A.C. § 71-04-01-01(13)

"Unforeseeable emergency" means a severe financial hardship to the participant resulting from
a sudden and unexpected illness or accident of the participant, the participant's spouse or
dependent of the participant, loss of the participant's property due to casualty, or other similar
extraordinary and unforeseeable circumstances arising as a result of events beyond the control
of the participant.

Board Action Requested
Approve or deny applicant’s request for a hardship withdrawal from their State of North Dakota
457 Deferred Compensation Plan account.




	AGENDA
	III. PRESENTATIONS
	A. Asset Allocation
	Attachment


	IV. DEFERRED COMPENSATION / DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
	A. 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan Self-Certification of Unforeseeable Financial Hardships 
	B. 457 Companion Plan & 401(a) Plan 2nd Quarter 2025 Report
	Attachment #1


	V. GROUP INSURANCE / FLEXCOMP
	A. FlexComp Plan Document
	Attachment
	B. Medicare Part D Plan Contract Amendment 
	C. 2024 Active Health Care Report
	Attachment



	VI. OPERATIONS / ADMINISTRATIVE
	A.Audit Committee Report
	Attachment

	B. Contracts under $10,000
	Attachment


	VII. MEMBER *EXECUTIVE SESSION
	A. Unforeseeable Financial Hardship Case #943 
	B. Unforeseeable Financial Hardship Case #953 




